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Corporate Profile
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/About
Cyberport

Cyberport is a creative digital community with close to 800
members. It is managed by Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited, which is wholly owned by
the Hong Kong SAR Government. With a vision to build a
legacy of entrepreneurial excellence and establish Cyberport
as a leading global innovation and technology hub, Cyberport
is committed to facilitating the local economy by nurturing
digital industry start-ups and entrepreneurs, driving
collaboration to pool resources and create business
opportunities, and accelerating digital adoption through
strategic initiatives and partnerships.

The Cyberport community comprises an exciting mix of blue-
chip technology giants, SMEs and hundreds of digital
technology start-ups. While the four grade-A intelligent office
buildings house many multinational tech companies, Smart-
Space, the 78,000 square feet co-working space at the
Cyberport Campus, gives many start-ups a great beginning
for their entrepreneurial journey by offering high-quality and
affordable office space, access to a vibrant start-up
community and a wide range of entrepreneurial support
programmes.

Equipped with an array of state-of-the-art tech facilities, a
cutting-edge broadband network, a five-star design hotel and
a retail and entertainment complex, the Cyberport campus is

well-placed to continue growing as a lively creative digital
community and connecting digital tech talents near and far.
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Cyberport is committed

to building a legacy of
entrepreneurial excellence
that establishes Cyberport as
a leading global innovation and
technology hub.
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Introduction

Bl S

/In 2015/16, Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company
Limited (Cyberport) together with Cyberport's digital
technology community made substantial progress in
delivering our public mission with its vision set on building a
legacy of entrepreneurial excellence that establishes
Cyberport as a leading global innovation and technology
hub.

Cyberport’s brand has been evolving in the reporting period
so that the brand will reflect more clearly our three strategic
pillars, namely, Cyberport Youth: Inspiring the next
generation; Cyberport Entrepreneurs: Nurturing the
entrepreneurial spirit; and Cyberport Partners: Empowering
global ambition.

For Cyberport Youth, we inspire youths' interest in digital
technology and foster them to be our innovators of
tomorrow. For Cyberport Entrepreneurs, we offer wide
array of programmes that are designed to help aspired
entrepreneurs realise their dreams and nurture the
entrepreneurial spirit in the region. For Cyberport Partners,
the network and relationships that we built with relevant
government authorities, industry leaders, investment
communities and partners in academia both locally and
globally, continue to serve as a springboard to empower our
entrepreneurs to leap onto the global stage.

This report will highlight key initiatives and programmes
that Cyberport have spearheaded to foster the creative and
entrepreneurial mind-set and to ensure that budding
entrepreneurs get access to all necessary resources and
support they would need to develop and thrive in the highly
competitive digital tech market today.
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Cyberport’s Key Achievements

IS E R

(2011/12-2015/16)

Cyberport’s Key Achievements

HISERFBE

(2011/12-2015/16)

Financials (HK$ million) B (BEEERT)
Operating income before Rt ARFEwEE 2
public mission activities BB A 406 409 449 469 468
Operating expenses before RETAREWEE 2
public mission activities LB H 303 303 300 310 316
Operating profit before RETRREREH
public mission activities XHRITEZ L&
expenses and depreciation ot A 103 106 149 159 152
Public mission activity NBEREBTH
expenses 27 32 53 68 83
Operating profit before RetrEZ &&E
depreciation i 7 76 74 96 91 69
Depreciation e 211 208 178 149 117
Loss before taxation BRi% AT EI 1R 135 134 82 58 48
Cyberport Creative Digital ZHIEBAISHE
Community HERE
Cyberport community IS B R BEHE
members 213 274 419 606 722
On-site Companies 2 NG 79 96 181 282 391
Off-site Companies FEFIZ A A 134 178 238 324 331
Active Cyberport T BB BN B
incubatees BBERR 109 136 160 195 231
Active Cyberport Creative BRI BRI R
Micro Fund grantees WA E S EBIER 34 52 98 145 199
Smart-Space Companies Smart-Space £
TR A 12 28 108 206 285
Cyberport Creative Digital Community members
G Bt mKE SR
No. of members
KREHE
800 — 722
700 —
600 —
500 —
400 —
300 —
200 —
100 —
0
2015/16
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15/16
Cyberport Youth BISBEEF
Internship placements BEBEAL 22 30 36 74 67
No. of youths participated in 2 NEE 5 S ERHE
Cyberport tech te B EFIE
competitions/training FEAHE 1,647 2,005 2372 2,183 4,538
Tech events participants BHEE2ME N/A 6,321 9996 10,207 16,730
Cyberport Entrepreneurs HIRABAIER
No. of Cyberport Creative IS BEIEMAES
Micro Fund granted bunt 4= 24 29 45 54 70
No. of new incubatees MMARZIEE A A
admitted s 34 33 30 51 51
Cyberport Partners HHESIERH
Funds raised by Cyberport SIS EEI R EES
start-ups (HK$ million) KER(BBET) 28 26 47 198 269
No. of Cyberport start-ups ~ BHESINTISZ
expanded globally IS BVIBIEE 1 5 11 13 13
No. of Cyberport start-ups &6 R UREEH
being merged or acquired IS BRI AE - 1 3 6 1
Funds raised by Cyberport Start-ups (HK$ million)
BRI EEBNIRESE
Funds raised (HK$ million)
SEB(EEAT)
300 — oo
250 —
198
200 —
150 —
100 —
o — 47
26
N o [
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
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Nurturing ( T 70+ 7000+
NOVaTIONn,

Cyberport events/

industry partners*

ERRBHE training*
BEESE TR,
BEIIR B AA
Inspiring the Future : 700+ JE
FEs A& B ALK R e | 150 [Cam| . :
community members” > T Imlm
HE A A S SEL = tech events / training®
KEsE o TR I
Cyberport’'s broad-ranging support ¢

and global network have given
start-ups impetus to innovate and
live out their fullest potential.
Our various initiatives in
inspiring the next generation,
nurturing the entrepreneurial
spirit and empowering global
ambition have produced

digital tech
internship
placements”
SRR AR
PN

funds raised by Cyberport start-ups”
BB VAICEEEE SR

remarkable results. Here in // ®
this infographic highlights
some of our
achievements.
Highlights of |
gyberport ln.CUbit'?nd Cyberport Creative
rogramme incubate : .
R Cyberport omomest | e maaae
1B IR B A AR TS BEISBIEEFEEEN AT ! EIEI,EE#
173 B Al > 2 A B A - @ @
it - BERF A - HRE in 2015/16 ?
EBAH - FRAEAIZE

@%%%ﬁ’ﬁﬂﬁmih
BRES c REMEIE  [FIF
EAFERMELE IR -

Smart-Space companies”
Smart-Space A a&l"
| 1)

2015/16F EME

_Jm] |
OmO companies expanded globally”
NN NN ERREEINTENAFS
OmO
\_ ¢ J
Remarks: T
*  Figures based on financial year 2015/16 * HFIRIE 2015/16 BT BUF EFTS
#  Figures accumulated as of 31 March 2016 * HZE2016F3 A3IALEMNEFET
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It is in the DNA of Cyberport to
effectively support
entrepreneurial talents to
capitalise on emerging
opportunities on the horizon.
Cyberport is intent on
encouraging creativity,
ingenuity, innovation and
spurring the passion of digital
entrepreneurs, so that the
Hong Kong community can
reap benefits from these
dynamic entrepreneurial
pursuits.

HRABARERAMTFAED X
HIBBEATMERAREE - K
MEBRAFHES AIEINBE
P AE AR BB R R R R
B SEELCSRAERREIN
RIEXEPEEEEMRR -

O~

As the new Chairman of the Board of Directors, it gives me
great pleasure in presenting the annual report of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited (“Cyberport™)
for the Financial Year 2015/16.

Cyberport has been playing an increasingly active role in
supporting Hong Kong in its transformation into a new,
innovation-driven digital economy. We at Cyberport have
charged ahead to foster entrepreneurship and digital
innovation based on Cyberport's three strategic pillars of
inspiring the next generation, nurturing the entrepreneurial
spirit, and empowering global ambition. By enhancing
existing programmes and implementing new initiatives, over
the past year we provided the much needed support to
more than 120 new start-ups and digital entrepreneurs for
building their competitive advantages, and the Cyberport
community already exceeded 720 companies across the
full spectrum of digital technology, ranging from FinTech,
e-commerce, Internet of things, digital wearables, cloud
computing, big data and smart city.

During the past year, we saw significant growth in student
and public participation in Cyberport events and
competitions, a hike in applications for funding
programmes, and new alliances forged with our global
industry and academia partners.

The prestigious awards we garnered and the record-high
HK$269 million of funds raised by our grantees and
incubatees, all bear testament to the Cyberport team’s
relentless dedication and effort in successfully enriching
Hong Kong's start-up ecosystem.

Entrepreneurship and innovation play a pivotal role in
achieving sustainable development of the Hong Kong
community. They constitute the key engine which propels
economic prosperity and fosters social cohesion. Whether
be it in a mature economy or a developing one, innovation
and technology have taken centre stage in national
development.

As a global financial centre, not only is Hong Kong richly
endowed with world-class business infrastructure, rule of
law, progressive regulations and good corporate
governance, it also possesses many critical factors for
success in fostering a thriving digital economy such as
strategic geographic position as the world's key gateway to
China, high speed Internet bandwidth, high mobile
teledensity and a sophisticated and well-developed digital
infrastructure. Cyberport can leverage these competitive
advantages to maintain a vibrant ecosystem to foster
entrepreneurship and innovation.

RESENFT—EESREESD  MARIE
EEFHUEBEEERAA(EHELE)R
2015/16 AR FE R F 3R -

RSB 1 B BB EAC A AT R BB AL L Y
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e BB AIF RES - MARF=K
REGIHE - B BB — KIS KA
BIXREN BEAFBH HHEXEREE
IS - BB M TIERREERA - BB
BEHETOFEINERFHAR  BE—FH
BEZBI20RMAILERBIB XA ERE
HEFAE SUBRBHMBETHFESD - 8
BELREBEB720R AR ©FKBE B8R
BREMERE A2BbE EFHE D
B FEAMK  BEmitE - KREEBEREEW
M

o

i

CEdE—F RMER2EBBEEEH R
BENSEEABUERAE - BIEBE THAIX
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MESEEMABET TN IEBHRR -

BRI CRERRERZARE R EIE -
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Chairman’s Statement

EERIEA

Chairman’s Statement

EEHIER

-

It is in the DNA of Cyberport to effectively support
entrepreneurial talents to capitalise on emerging
opportunities on the horizon. Cyberport is intent on
encouraging creativity, ingenuity, innovation and spurring
the passion of digital entrepreneurs, so that the Hong Kong
community can reap benefits from these dynamic
entrepreneurial pursuits.

Going forwards, Cyberport will not only continue to offer
tangible support to ensure that good ideas can be
developed, but also press ahead new initiatives under our
ecosystem. Entrepreneurship support starts with Cyberport
Creative Micro Fund and as a start-up matures, it can
progress to Cyberport Incubation Programme, then to
Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme and finally
Cyberport Macro Fund, the foundation of which was built
over the past year. These initiatives form a more
comprehensive funding support service ensuring any good
ideas with good development potential will not go to waste.
Over time, it is hoped that the products and services
developed by Cyberport-supported start-ups can scale up
to successfully access not just neighbouring markets in the
Mainland, but globally as well.

The establishment of the new Innovation and Technology
Bureau in November 2015 and strategic initiatives outlined
in the 2016 Policy Address for the development of the
innovation and technology industry have also given
Cyberport new impetus to advance its work. Guided by
these clear visions and directions for Hong Kong, Cyberport
will take bold strides to enhance and enrich all its
programmes and offerings. We will also work closely with
the industry to provide our start-ups and innovators a more
supportive foundation to grow from strength to strength.

The achievements of the past year attest to the
collaborative efforts of our team and our Board of Directors
who had worked fervently with the “Triple Helix" of industry,
academia and government to achieve the objectives
outlined in our second three-year strategic plan. We could
not have done so without Cyberport's strong dedicated
team who apply their zeal, commitment and unending
energy at every turn to take Cyberport further on the
journey of success in realising its ambition to become
Cyberport of the world, a leading global digital technology
and innovation hub, standing as a beacon to digital
entrepreneurs worldwide.

12 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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| would like to take this opportunity to welcome two new
members of the Board of Directors, Duncan Chiu and Cheuk
Wing Hing, who is the Permanent Secretary for Innovation
and Technology. At the same time, we bid a fond farewell to
a member of the Board of Directors Susie Ho, and our
former Chairman, Paul Chow. | am deeply grateful to Paul
for his inspirational leadership at Cyberport for the past 10
years, during which he led Cyberport as Chairman of the
Board of Directors for 6 years to spearhead initiatives to
ensure that Cyberport can adapt to the changing needs in
the digital era. His vision and adherence to corporate
governance won the respect of all our stakeholders both
locally and abroad. He left a legacy of unending quest for
excellence and his three-year strategic plans have provided
the foundation for us to build upon. Together with my team,
we will continue this exciting journey as Cyberport shapes
the digital future of Hong Kong in the 21st century for the
betterment of our society.

Lee G. LAM
Chairman
Cyberport
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

ITHRERE

Chief Executive Officer’s Report

TTHRERE

-

Cyberport is committed
to fully leveraging our
resources and networks
to support digital
enterprises and
entrepreneurs, so that
they could scale up to
become successful,
renowned brands on the
world’s stage.
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As a leading financial and digital hub, Hong Kong must
continue to innovate to maintain its competitive edge. This
is where Cyberport is playing a key role as catalyst in
ensuring that Hong Kong thrives in the global arena by
focusing on our three pillars: Cyberport Youth, Cyberport
Entrepreneurs and Cyberport Partners. The highlights that
are presented in the 2015/16 year in review demonstrate
how our efforts had impacted the ecosystem for start-ups
in Hong Kong. They also illustrate the invaluable
relationships, network, and vision that have been
established as a base for further growth.

We will continue to find new ways to leverage our resources,
platform, connections and funding for the benefit of our
stakeholders. As much as we are proud of our
achievements, it is important for us to enter this phase with
a renewed passion and profound commitment. Not only
must we review our practices and initiatives, we must
ensure that our three pillars are continually refreshed and
reinvigorated and that all new initiatives will be built on a
clearly defined baseline and solid foundation. The
rebranding initiative undertaken during the year will further
deepen the understanding of our mission among our
stakeholders both locally in Hong Kong and around the
world.

The programmes developed under each pillar are
expounded in greater detail in its individual section.
Meanwhile, | am proud to summarise the accomplishments
of the year based on our three pillars.

ERERRRSBEBERZP L - LA
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Cyberport Youth: Inspiring the next
generation

As Albert Einstein said, “imagination is more important than
knowledge. For knowledge is limited to all we now know and
understand, while imagination embraces the entire world,
and all there ever will be to know and understand.” The
future is limited only to our ability to imagine it.

At Cyberport, we can seize the day and craft a bright future
for Hong Kong's start-up ecosystem by first ensuring that
there is a substantial talent pool to power entrepreneurship
and innovation. Our first pillar focuses on sparking the
creativity and imagination of our young people who will take
the baton in the new digital era. These young minds need to
be stimulated, empowered and inspired to achieve more.
After all, Facebook and Google started out as university
student projects at Harvard and Stanford respectively.

Cyberport inspires the next generation and generates their
interest in digital technology through digital tech related
competitions, games and interactive workshops such as
Cyberport Coding Jam 1000, whereby the ‘magic’ of coding
is unveiled for a better understanding of the logic and
science behind the technology. Practical skills are taught
through immersive experience with Cyberport Digital Tech
Internship Programme. Furthermore, students nominated
to the Cyberport University Partnership Programme are
funded to participate in the Entrepreneurship Boot Camp at
the Stanford Graduate School of Business, to be further
developed to become the innovative FinTech talents of
tomorrow. This entrepreneurial mind-set developed will
help our next generation to be more creative and inspire
them to change the world with digital technology.

16 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
2015/16 Annual Report
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Cyberport Entrepreneurs: Nurturing
entrepreneurial spirit

Behind any digital tech product or service developed, there
is a unique story of innovation, creativity, hard work and
determination which might go wasted without the full-
fledged support of Cyberport. The success experienced by
our start-ups underlies how essential it is for Cyberport to
fulfil our public mission to create that space for innovation,
to support the entrepreneurial spirit at every stage of its
development so that the ideas could take off, develop into
successful and scalable enterprises and even make it on the
world's stage.

Cyberport catalyses innovative thinking to accelerate these
start-ups at every stage of their developments with various
programmes. At the germination stage, under Cyberport
Creative Micro Fund, it provides the much needed seed
money for funding new projects while budding enterprises
can apply for Cyberport Incubation Programme. To further
develop these start-ups, the Cyberport Accelerator Support
Programme and Cyberport Macro Fund are in place as
financial backing. Cyberport will also act as a facilitator and
an enabler providing mentorship, marketing support,
technology and network to build a cohesive digital tech
community among them for cross pollination of ideas.

We are proud to see the efforts pay off in creating a fertile
environment for start-ups to launch pilots and experiment
with ground-breaking innovative ideas. The significant
funding secured and numerous prestigious awards
garnered locally and worldwide underlie the fulfilment of our
public mission in nurturing the entrepreneurial spirit.
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Cyberport Partners: Empowering global
ambition

Cyberport has undergone a rebranding initiative which
better reflects our corporate personality that is infused with
youthful energy, approachability and resourcefulness.
Hence we are better equipped in empowering start-ups to
expand globally.

Cyberport is always committed to adding value in the
innovation value chain, by collaborating globally with our
valuable partners. On the one hand we cherish the start-ups
that we are nurturing, and on the other hand we facilitate
their collaboration with our network partners to embrace
the vibrant digital-tech development in the diversified global
space.

To keep local entrepreneurs abreast of industry trends with
forums and exhibitions, we have an active agenda to drive
regional and global collaboration by connecting our start-
ups with talents, investors and industry professionals, etc.
Over the course of the year, Cyberport has organised a
series of events and overseas delegations to bolster
Cyberport community members’ ability to expand to
Mainland China and beyond, to the United States, Canada,
United Kingdom, France, Sweden, and Singapore. We have
leveraged our network with leading industry players like
Lenovo and NetDragon to enhance our dynamic start-up
ecosystem further, with the former setting up its first cloud
service and product research and development centre in
Asia Pacific at Cyberport, and the latter providing
professional training to Cyberport start-ups.

Closer to home, the opening of Cyberport Guangzhou
Representative Office serves to support Hong Kong's digital
tech start-ups and SMEs to operate more effectively in
Mainland China. This will further raise the ante there as
Cyberport has already built a solid reputation for our work,
and we are honoured to receive tremendous recognition
from various Mainland China media as well as industry
partners.

I 'am glad that our efforts bear fruits, but we will not rest on
our laurels. Looking ahead, we are bold to craft an even
brighter future by effectively unleashing the vibrant force in
ingenuity and digital technology. Cyberport will continue to
be at the forefront of supporting digital tech entrepreneurs
for the betterment of Hong Kong.
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Moving Forward

Cyberport is committed to fully leveraging our resources
and networks to support digital enterprises and
entrepreneurs, so that they could scale up to become
successful, renowned brands on the world's stage. Indeed,
Cyberport’'s empowering global ambition is a real
prerogative for Cyberport to ensure that Hong Kong can
continue to stay at the top in a digital economy which is
deeply innovative, highly rewarding and genuinely inclusive.
| would like to invite you all to “stay tuned” and be on the
lookout for more dynamic initiatives from Cyberport in
2016/17.

In 2016/17, Cyberport will inject another HK$200 million
into the newly launched Cyberport Macro Fund, thus
increasing the funding available for start-ups to ensure that
adequate financial backing is provided to help local start-
ups fill the funding gap as they advance from the seed stage.

Last but not least, | would like to express my gratitude to our
former Chairman, Paul Chow, for his leadership in the past
10 years. | have every confidence that under the visionary
guidance of our new Chairman, Dr Lee G. Lam, Cyberport
will continue to make big bold strides in the years to come,
firmly establishing Cyberport as the enabling force behind
digital entrepreneurs of the 215t century.

Herman LAM Heung-yeung
Chief Executive Officer
Cyberport
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Chairman

Lee G. LAM

Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company Limited

Dr Lee G. Lam is a member of the Hong Kong Council on
Smoking and Health, the Court of the City University of
Hong Kong and Sir Murray MaclLehose Trust Fund
Investment Advisory Committee, Alternate Chairman of
UNESCAP Business Advisory Council Task Force on
Banking and Finance, Chairman of the Permanent
Commission on Economic and Financial Issues of World
Union of Small and Medium Enterprises (WUSME),
Honorary Chairman — Asia Pacific of CMA Australia,
Chairman of Monte Jade Science and Technology
Association of Hong Kong and President of Hong Kong-
ASEAN Economic Cooperation Foundation. Earlier he also
served as a part-time member of the Central Policy Unit,
and a member of the Task Force on Industry Facilitation
under the Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee, the
Assessment Panel of the Small Entrepreneur Research
Assistance Programme under the Innovation and
Technology Fund, the New Business Committee of the Hong
Kong Financial Services Development Council and the Legal
Aid Services Council.

Board Members

Philip CHAN Ching-ho, BBs

Deputy President and Provost of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University

Professor Philip Chan is the Deputy President and Provost
of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Professor Chan
received his Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical
Engineering (Highest Honor) from University of California at
Davis, and obtained a Master of Science degree and a
Doctor of Philosophy degree in Electrical Engineering from
University of lllinois at Urbana-Champaign (UIUC). He
taught at UIUC and then joined Intel Corporation in the US.

Professor Chan joined The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in 1991 as a founding member, and served
as the Head of the Department of Electronic and Computer
Engineering, Director of Nanoelectronics Fabrication
Facility, and Dean of Engineering. He is a Fellow of Hong
Kong Institution of Engineering, a Fellow of the Institute of
Electrical and Electronic Engineers and a Fellow of Hong
Kong Academy of Engineering Sciences.

Professor Chan advised the HKSAR Government on the
setting up of Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology
Research Institute Company Limited (ASTRI) and is
currently a Director and the Chairman of the Technology
Committee of ASTRI. He is also a member of the Working
Group on Manufacturing Industries, Innovative Technology,
and Cultural and Creative Industries under the Economic
Development Commission.
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Board Members (continued)

CHEUK Wing-hing, Jp

Permanent Secretary for Innovation & Technology

Mr Cheuk Wing-hing has served in various bureaux and
departments. He was Director of Food and Environmental
Hygiene from 2007 to 2010, Commissioner for Labour from
2010 to 2014 and Director of Administration and
Development in the Department of Justice from 2014 to
2015. He was appointed Permanent Secretary for
Innovation and Technology in November 2015.

Duncan CHIU

Managing Director of Radiant Venture Capital

After almost 20 years of investment and M&A experience in
the Greater China region, Mr Chiu founded Radiant Venture
Capital in 2014 to focus in early stage investments into tech
start-ups. In less than two years, Radiant has already
invested into more than 25 start-up companies in Israel, US,
China and Hong Kong. He has participated and spoke at
numerous tech forum and conferences to promote start-up
culture in Hong Kong and also help young entrepreneurs
with business plan workshops and mentorship.

Mr Chiu is currently the President of Hong Kong Information
Technology Joint Council (HKITJC), Vice Chairman of Hong
Kong Business Angel Network, Group 30 Vice-Chairman
(Creative Industries) of Federation of Hong Kong Industries,
Vice Chairman of Internet Professional Association, Vice
Chairman of Hong Kong Crowd Funding Association of
Professionals, Secretary General of Asian Squash
Federation, Member of the Chinese People's Political
Consultative Conference — Shanghai Committee, 10th and
11th Committee Member of All-China Youth Federation, Vice
Chairman of Henan Provincial Youth Federation, Director of
Council for the Promotion of Guangdong-Hongkong-Macao
Cooperation (Information Technology Committee),
standing committee member of Shenzhen Association for
Science & Technology, Associate Member of Hong Kong
Government's Central Policy Unit and Director of three Ju
Ching Chu Secondary Schools (Kwai Chung, Yuen Long and
Tuen Mun). Mr Chiu holds a BA degree in Business
Administration from Pepperdine University, USA.
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Board Members (continued)

Humphrey CHOI Chor-ching, Jp

Partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers

Mr Humphrey Choi is PwC's China, Hong Kong and Asia
Pacific Assurance Leader and a core member of PwC's
Global Assurance Leadership Team. He is a member of
PwC's China and Hong Kong's Management Board and a
member of PwC China, Hong Kong, Singapore and Taiwan's
Executive Board.

Mr Choi has years of audit and advisory experience, and
works with a wide range of international and local clients.
He has tremendous experience in helping companies list on
the Hong Kong and overseas stock exchanges. Over the
years, he has also played key leadership roles as the Hong
Kong Markets Leader, China and Hong Kong Middle Market
Leader, a member of the Global Middle Market Leadership
Team and a member of the China and Hong Kong's Board
of Partners.

Mr Choi is currently a member of the Administrative
Appeals Board and a Director of Hong Kong Applied Science
and Technology Research Institute Company Limited.

Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak

Partner of CWCC

Ms Rosanna Choi is a CWCC CPA partner and audit
specialist, leading one of the audit teams. She chairs the
firm's Training Committee and IT Committee, enhancing
staff skills and productivity, and the effective use of
information technology.

Ms Choiis the Past Chairman of ACCA Hong Kong, has been
serving the global body for professional accountants as a
Hong Kong Committee member since 2002. She is
currently a member of the ACCA (Global) Council and the
Chairperson of its Global SME Forum.

Ms Choi is also an Executive Committee member of Social
Venture Hong Kong, a Council member of Hong Kong
Baptist University, and the Vice-chairperson of its Finance
Committee, and an Audit Committee member of the Urban
Renewal Authority.
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Board Members (continued)

LAU Chun-kong

International Director of Jones Lang LaSalle Limited
Mr C K Lau is an International Director of Jones Lang LaSalle
and is responsible for the Asia valuation and advisory
business of the firm. He is a chartered surveyor and a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. Mr Lau has a wide
breath of experience in property valuation, real estate
consultancy and investment sales market.

Mr Lau is a member of the Estate Agents Authority and the
Chairman of its Licensing Committee. He is also a member
of the Land and Development Advisory Committee,
Administrative Appeals Board and the REIT Committee of
Securities and Futures Commission.

Edwin LEE Kan-hing

Founder and CEO of Bridgeway Prime Shop Fund
Management Limited.

The first SFC licensed shop property fund management
company in Hong Kong.

Bridgeway Group was established by Dr Lee Kan-hing in
2001 as a business broker and builder. In 2015, Dr Lee
successfully transformed the business into the first SFC-
licensed asset management company in Hong Kong that
focuses on giving investors a new way of investment, by
focusing on its core strength in prime shop investments as
well as P2P lending, with type 1 (Dealing with securities),
type 4 (Advising on securities) and type 9 (Asset
management) regular activities licenses under Bridgeway
Prime Shop Fund Management Limited. Dr Lee was the sole
awardee of the 2010 Hong Kong Business Awards: Young
Entrepreneur Award by DHL/South China Morning Post and
named one of the 2011 Ten Outstanding Young Persons by
Junior Chamber International Hong Kong. Dr Lee is a
Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) and a Certified Business
Intermediary (CBI). He received his Bachelor of Science in
Finance and Master of Science in Accounting from the
University of Southern California, USA as well as Doctor of
Business Administration (DBA) degree at the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a research focus in
entrepreneurship. In 2014, he completed the 3-year
Owner/President Management Program at Harvard
Business School. Bridgeway and Dr Lee were also twice
featured as business case studies: “A Launching Pad for
Entrepreneurs” and “The Dynamics of Innovative
Entrepreneurship” by the University of Hong Kong which
were listed under Harvard Business Review in 2010 and
2012 respectively.
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Board Members (continued)

Gabriel PANG Tsz-kit

Managing Director of Firedog Creative Company
Limited

Mr Gabriel Pang is the Founder and the Managing Director
of Firedog Creative Company Limited and has more than 17
years of experience in IT and Creative industries. Mr Pang
founded the famous game company “Firedog Studio” in
1999, and is one of the pioneers in Hong Kong game
development.

Mr Pang's major public services includes, the chairman of
Hong Kong Digital Entertainment Association since 2008,
board member of Hong Kong Education City Limited, vice
chairman of Hong Kong Software Industry Association,
committee member of Commission on Youth, committee
member of HK Taiwan Cultural Cooperation Committee,
committee member of Exchanges with Taiwan Funding
Scheme assessment committee, member of ITF Enterprise
Support Scheme assessment panel and committee
member of VTC committee on IT Training and
Development.

Douglas SO Cheung-tak
Vice-President and Pro-Vice-Chancellor —
The University of Hong Kong

Mr Douglas So is a solicitor of Hong Kong.

Mr So is Vice-President and Pro-Vice-Chancellor of The
University of Hong Kong in charge of institutional
advancement. Prior to this appointment, he was Executive
Director of Charities, General Counsel and Company
Secretary of The Hong Kong Jockey Club.

Mr So is the Secretary of the Hong Kong Committee for
UNICEF, a board member of HK Phil, The Prince Philip
Dental Hospital, The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital,
Advisory Committee on Built Heritage Conservation and
History Museum Advisory Panel, amongst others.
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Board Members (continued)

Alfred WONG Kwok-kuen

Mr Alfred Wong was the Chief Technology Officer and Head
of Information Technology Division of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEXx) since April 2004
until he retired in September 2010. Earlier in his career, Mr
Wong had held several other senior IT positions at the HKEXx
and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong since rejoining the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in November 1992. Mr Wong
was a project leader at the Australian Stock Exchange and a
consultant application engineer at Australia’'s Westpac
Banking Corporation between 1987 and 1992.

Peter YAN King-shun

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
SUNeVision Holdings Limited

Mr Peter Yan is the Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of SUNeVision Holdings Limited, where he is
responsible for the group’s overall business operations,
including Data Centres, SMATV, Network and Connectivity
services.

Mr Yan has over 31 years of experience in the information
technology industry and has extensive experience in public
services. Besides Cyberport, Mr Yan is also a director of the
Hong Kong Data Centre Association Limited and a council
member of the Independent Police Complaints Council.

Mr Yan is a Honorary Advisor and Life-time Fellow of the
Hong Kong Computer Society. He holds a Bachelor's
degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and received Executive Education
for Global Leadership from the Harvard Business School.
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Board Members (continued)

Jeny YEUNG Mei-chun

Commercial Director of MTR Corporation Limited

Ms Jeny Yeung is the Commercial Director and a Member of
the Executive Directorate of MTR Corporation Limited. Ms
Yeung is a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing and
Institute of Logistics and Transport. She is also a member
of the Marketing Management Committee of the Hong Kong
Management Association, the Advisory Committee on
Publicity and Public Education in Innovation and Technology
of the Innovation and Technology Commission of the
HKSAR Government, and the Infrastructure Development
Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development
Council.

Ms Yeung is also a member of the Tourism Board and a
director in some of the members of the Company's group.
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Retired Director

Paul CHOW Man-yiu, GBS, SBS, JP

(Retired on 4 June 2016)

Mr Paul Chow retired as the Chief Executive and Executive
Director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited in
January 2010. Prior to this, he was the Chief Executive, Asia
Pacific (ex-Japan) Region, of HSBC Asset Management
(Hong Kong) Limited from April 1997 to April 2003 as well
as the Chief Executive of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
and the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited
from October 1991 to January 1997 and from January 1990
to October 1991 respectively.

Mr Chow is currently an independent non-executive director
of China Mobile Limited, CITIC Limited, Julius Baer Group
Ltd. and Bank Julius Baer & Co., a member of the Advisory
Committee on Innovation and Technology of the HKSAR
Government and a member of the Asian Advisory
Committee of AustralianSuper Pty Limited. He was also an
independent non-executive director of the Bank of China
Limited between October 2010 and August 2016.

Resigned Director

Elizabeth TSE Man-yee, Jp

(Resigned on 19 September 2016)

Permanent Secretary for Financial Services and the
Treasury (Treasury)

Miss Elizabeth Tse was Deputy Secretary for the Treasury
(later renamed Deputy Secretary for Financial Services and
the Treasury (Treasury)) from July 1999 to April 2006,
Director of Administration from April 2006 to October
2007, Permanent Secretary of the Chief Executive's Office
from October 2007 to April 2010 and Permanent Secretary
for Commerce and Economic Development
(Communications and Technology) from 26 April 2010 to
24 July 2012. She has taken up the appointment of
Permanent Secretary for Financial Services and the
Treasury (Treasury) since 25 July 2012.
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Today's inspiration is tomorrow's innovation. And
innovation has to be accomplished with creativity and an
understanding of technologies. By harnessing the creativity
and inventiveness of children and young people, by inspiring
them with technology's possibilities, and empowering them
with the necessary skills and capacity, Cyberport inspires
the next generation of Millenovators ("“millennium
innovators™), who will offer game-changing solutions to the
challenges, perhaps for centuries to come. To foster
entrepreneurship and digital innovation in the community,
we have three priorities: spur interest in technology, build
capacity through experiential learning, and gain experience
via technology-related careers and digital entrepreneurship.

Sheryl Sandberg, Chief Operating Officer of Facebook, said,
“an understanding of computer science is becoming
increasingly essential in today's world.” Cyberport
understands the importance of learning code and believes
that creating programmes is an excellent way to manifest
creativity and hone problem-solving skills. We have
recognised the need and boosted coding activities for
youngsters to learn to code, test their ideas and realise
visions through programming. The success of Cyberport
Youth Coding Jam 1000 demonstrated our strong
commitment towards this goal. In April 2015, more than
1,000 young coders, aged 6-18, created their futuristic
smart city map by coding collaboratively. It was a delight
watching these young children discover the joy of coding.
They were encouraged to use their creativity and critical
thinking to solve problems, share with their peers, exercise
their imagination and take pride in setting a new world
record for “the Most Youngsters Performing Coding”.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
2015/16 Annual Report
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Our efforts did not halt at a single event. Research has
indicated that children learn best when knowledge is
presented in a creative play format and that their
performance peaks with competitions. Cyberport organised
many fun-filled competitions and interactive workshops for
children and young people to learn about coding and
technology. These events included Cyberport Let's Code
Day 3.0: Computational Thinking Fun Day, Global Game
Jam Hong Kong 2016, National Olympiad in Informatics
2015 and Hong Kong Digital Game Development
Competition, etc. We also incorporated coding elements in
our school tours, where we acquainted students with the
latest technology know-how, from 3D printing, smart
mobility to the Internet of Things.
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Deep knowledge is the basis of all innovations. To provide
young talents a deeper digital tech knowledge, Cyberport
offers experiential training through the Cyberport Digital
Tech Internship Programme. The well-received programme
pulls support from industry leaders who share our
commitment in inspiring the next generation and passionate
innovators of tomorrow who dare to take on the challenges.
Participating digital tech companies are often amazed by
the infusion of fresh talents brimming with innovative
concepts and ideas, while the interns receive invaluable
mentorship and real-world experiences. In the period, the
67 interns underwent on-the-job training, some during
summer holidays while others took part in year-long
internships. The interns are able to develop skills for jobs in
tech companies or worked on pet projects of innovative
entrepreneurs. They learnt to build, create, manage, or
support a tech project, and had familiarised themselves
with software development and other aspects of business
operation. It is most rewarding witnessing these young
people flourish as digital innovators. By interacting and
working with industry professionals, it had inspired
youngsters to start and build their own careers within the
digital-tech industry. The invaluable and practical work
experience they had gained was very applicable when they
kick-start their tech career or start their own tech
businesses.

Over the years, the Cyberport Digital Tech Internship
Programme has expanded both in magnitude and depth.
We have successfully connected in total 229 young talents
with 54 companies, which included world-renowned
companies such as Microsoft and EMC in Shanghai,
NetDragon in Fuzhou and world-class accelerators like Plug
and Play, a Silicon Valley-based global innovation platform
behind runaway tech successes like PayPal and Dropbox, as
well as 500 Startups, one of the world's top start-ups
engines which has funded well over 1,500 companies.
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Throughout the world, many innovators and digital
entrepreneurs are born from universities. Recognising the
universities’ crucial role, Cyberport has long partnered with
local universities to offer internship opportunities to
students. As our ecosystem matures and our tech sector
diversifies, particularly in FinTech sector, Cyberport has
enriched its partnerships and programmes to address new
needs.

In the year, Cyberport had pilot run the Cyberport University
Partnership Programme (CUPP) to invigorate university
students’ entrepreneurial and innovative spirit. This
FinTech-focused entrepreneurship programme is designed
to unleash the students’ potential and broaden their
horizons by connecting them to world-class tuition.
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“Cyberport University
Partnership Programme
is a key to a bigger
world.”

— Optimor.io, CUPP participating team.
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Elite teams of students nominated by 5 local university
partners participated in a week-long, customised
Entrepreneurship Boot Camp at the Stanford Graduate
School of Business (Stanford GSB). There, the students
received top-notch guidance on the fundamentals of
entrepreneurship, from business model strategy, financial
modelling, pricing, go-to-market strategy, design and
decision-making, IP strategy, etc. Both before and after the
trip, distinguished professionals from leading industry
consultancies, including Ernst & Young, KPMG and
PricewaterhouseCoopers, mentored the students and
helped them refine their FinTech projects. Months of
intensive training culminated in CUPP Demo Day, where the
students demonstrated their business prototypes to a panel
of judges. The 10 winning teams were each awarded
HK$100,000 in seed funding to further develop their ideas
into prototypes.

CUPP was an eye-opening experience for the students. It
received encouraging compliments from students, industry
and university partners. It was indeed one of our most
successful attempts in the year to reinforce our
commitment on inspiring the next generation.

4 O Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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From years of working with young entrepreneurs, we
understand that obtaining initial capital to begin their
creative projects can be a challenging process. The
Cyberport Creative Micro Fund (CCMF) fulfils young
innovators' desire to turn creative concepts into prototypes,
test ideas and realise dreams. Participants can gain
practical start-up experience, connect with like-minded
peers and learn to grow their businesses. During the year,
the total number of applications for CCMF surpassed 690, a
marked increase of nearly 25% year-on-year, and 70 of the
applications were successfully admitted to CCMF. We can
look back with pride as we have already awarded 232
creative projects, and 65 of these projects advanced to the
Cyberport Incubation Programme to further develop their
business ventures.

One of the CCMF projects, LULIO, was developed by a
clinical psychologist Dr. Jamie Chiu and Mark Altosaar, to
help students assess their own mental wellness status and
seek help when needed. Jamie was nominated by Forbes
magazine in its inaugural “30 Under 30 Asia” list, and the
project reflected the ingenuity of Cyberport-backed
projects. This is a good example illustrating that good ideas
could take off when they are nurtured and nourished with
the opportunity and backing they deserve.
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“All good ideas need to be acted upon to be meaningful. Cyberport Creative
Micro Fund gave us the opportunity to get our concept off the ground. Our
mobile solution now helps students assess their mental wellness and seek help

when needed.”
— Dr Jamie Chiu, Founder of LULIO

[RIXHFEEER IG5  AREAASHEESIRMERAFES - BE

LULIOF SRR ENES - BB B A A OEAMEE -

— LULIO &I A F BB+

MR FRBEREE - SR - |

Looking ahead

From the expansion of the internship programme to the
extensive support in grooming entrepreneurial talents,
moving forward, Cyberport will continue to catalyse the
training of young minds to ensure that Hong Kong continues
to grow a substantial pool of young creative talents to build
a bright and sustainable future in this digital era, driving
innovation and growth in the global economy.
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2015/16 was a banner year for Cyberport and Hong Kong's
entrepreneurship. The number of start-up company
registrations surged 46% year-on-year, according to
government statistics released in August 2015, logging
1,558 start-ups in the city. We are delighted about this
development, as start-ups are key drivers for Hong Kong's
growth — they inject positive change through developing
new products and services, and creating new jobs. As a
purveyor of digital innovation and entrepreneurship, we are
proud that we remain committed to enhancing the start-up
ecosystem. While our first strategic pillar focuses on
inspiring the next generation, our second one — nurturing
the entrepreneurial spirit — focuses on offering digital
entrepreneurs financial support, professional knowledge,
business advice, essential tools and ample resources that
enable them to grow.

How we are doing it

We understand securing funding, scaling into international
markets and improving sustainability of the business remain
key challenges along the meandering and bumpy road of
digital ventures. In view of this, Cyberport provides a one-
stop platform with a vast array of initiatives to support start-
ups at different stages of development.

Cyberport Incubation Programme, as one of our most long-
standing signature programmes, provides incubatees with
up to HK$330,000 over a 24-month incubation period to
help them jumpstart their businesses. We had been
concurrently nurturing 98 incubatees in the year, including
51 incubatees being newly admitted. As of 31 March 2016,
our total number of cumulative incubatees stands at 321.
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“To any start-up, R&D is a crucial process. Lattice was very lucky to have
received comprehensive support from the Cyberport Incubation Programme,
allowing us to focus on the development of our FinTech solutions. Our product
is now mature, and we have successfully launched it in multiple markets.”

— Wing Cheung, CEQ, Lattice

[HARIEEMS  ARRE—EAEEER - Lattice REE®BIBBEBIEZEFENE S
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Many of our incubatees have set great milestones for their
businesses during the year. A Cyberport start-up, Klook
Travel, an online platform for booking tourist attractions and
travel activities, secured a US$5 million Series A funding after
raising a US$1.5 million in seed capital. Klook Travel has
500,000 users across Asia and serves thousands of travelers
every day. Another Cyberport start-up, GoGoVan, a logistic
app that connects users with more than 70,000 van drivers
across Hong Kong, Mainland China, Singapore, Korea and
Taiwan, raised another US$10 million Series B funding in the
year. An EduTech start-up, Snapask, with its mobile app that
provides on-demand online academic support to secondary
school students with 5,000 qualified tutors, stormed the
market with over 100,000 accumulative number of students
across Hong Kong, Taiwan and Singapore. They succeeded
in acquiring US$1.8 million in pre-Series A funding and
continue to develop its presence in Southeast Asian
countries. NexChange, a professional social network for the
FinTech industry, also closed a US$2.5 million deal with
investors from Hong Kong and US.
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The achievements of our start-ups are widely recognised.
As of 31 March 2016, Cyberport start-ups cumulatively
garnered 217 awards and registered 185 intellectual
properties. Another Cyberport start-up Air Button, which
invented a wireless, batteryless button for mobile phone's
control, was the first Hong Kong company crowned with the
“Best 100" at the prestigious Good Design Award, which is
an international award that celebrates excellence in design
and innovation.

Cyberport's FinTech start-ups also fared very well. Lattice,
a start-up that provides portfolio management platform,
was named “Hot 10 to Watch” by UK's FinTechCity, beating
1,200 FinTech start-up contenders. Whereas in the “The
FinTech20: Hong Kong" list selected by FinTechCity, 7
Cyberport companies were selected, including APrivacy,
Cashyou, Ironfly Technologies, Monexo Innovations, Neat,
Prive Financial and Quantifeed. Ironfly Technologies, an
online platform, which provides instant real-time data
insights. This start-up company, together with the
aforementioned start-up Lattice, both won the Grand
Awards at the UK Trade & Investment (UKTI) Hong Kong
FinTech Award 2015 in recognition of their outstanding work
inthe FinTech sector.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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Hong Kong entrepreneurs’ innovative spirit was duly
recognised as well. Forbes named Cyberport entrepreneurs
Reeve Kwan, co-founder of GoGoVan, Timothy Yu and
Bradley Chiang, co-founders of Snapask, and Jamie Chiu,
founder of LULIO, to be among the publication’s inaugural
“30 Under 30 Asia” list, recognising the young founders as
promising young leaders, bold entrepreneurs and game-
changers in 10 different sectors. These awards and
achievements are a testament to the prowess of Cyberport-
backed ventures in the local and international arena.

To provide the best knowledge to start-ups and industry,
Cyberport also brings global investors and thought-leaders
to Hong Kong to share knowledge with the start-ups. During
the year, Cyberport organised and supported over 150 tech-
related events, forums and training sessions, including
signature events like Digital Entrepreneurs Leadership
Forum, FinTech-focused events like Smart Contract for
Smart Cites and FinTech Innovation Forum 2015, etc. More
than 17,000 technology entrepreneurs, seasoned
professionals and senior executives from leading brands
and investors attended these events, sharing enlightening
insights on pertinent issues and trends with our start-ups.
Renowned gurus and digital business leaders who attended
the events included KK Wong from Xiaomi and Dr Jeffrey
Cole from the Center for the Digital Future at USC
Annenberg School for Communication & Journalism.
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We also work with industry partners such as Alibaba
Entrepreneurs Fund, Marks and Clerk,Microsoft,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, ZenDesk and other industry
partners to provide one-on-one mentorship to Cyberport
start-ups, helping them overcome potential pitfalls on their
quest to building a successful venture. To boost start-ups’
fundraising capability and access to capital, the Cyberport
Start-up Angel Pitching Training Programme offers
extensive training on various pitching skills and puts them
into practice at the Cyberport Pitching Day.

Cyberport also offers various infrastructure and support to
address many start-up community's needs. These include
high speed connectivity and secure, sophisticated cloud
computing infrastructure. As one of Hong Kong's first cloud
service providers to claim the internationally-recognised
Cloud Security Alliance STAR certification, Cyberport
launched its Second Generation Cyberport Community
Cloud in the year to provide user-friendly and flexible self-
provisioning Infrastructure-as-a-service (laaS). The service
is available to all Cyberport community members, from
Smart-Space users, tenants, incubatees, alumni to
subscribers, to enable maximium operational efficiency and
agile, cost-effective expansion.

Smart-Space: Housing a melting pot of
local and international talents

Access to space is another challenge for Hong Kong start-
ups, and the market has responded with co-working spaces
of different sorts over the past few years. As one of Hong
Kong's largest co-working spaces for digital tech start-ups,
Cyberport Smart-Space is a dynamic hub for local and
overseas SMEs and creative entrepreneurs who are intent
on capturing the opportunities in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Asia. Housing 285 companies from 20 countries,
Smart-Space is a vibrant melting pot of creative digital
innovators.
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“We really like working at Smart-Space because it’s a great place to come up
with new ideas and meet other start-ups. Cyberport’s FinTech-related events
allow us to network and learn about all the latest in the industry.”

— David Rosa, CEQO, Neat
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Our Smart-Space community also regularly organises on-
premise events such as Smart-Talks and Smart-Clinics to
foster networking, business collaboration, interchange and
communication; and Smart-Tryouts to gather community
feedback on new product trials. These initiatives, alongside
with other community-oriented offerings such as business
service referral, legal and accounting consultancy, high speed
connectivity as well as Cyberport Community Cloud, provide
Smart-Space companies an ideal environment to thrive.

In response to the overwhelming demand from clusters
such as FinTech and e-commerce as well as the latest
market developments, Smart-Space has grown from a
meagre eight-room establishment to a total of 75,000
square feet co-working space. In the year, we recorded
almost 38% growth in the number of Smart-Space
companies.

Looking Ahead

Having incubated more than 320 start-ups, Cyberport will
continue to provide a rich and robust ecosystem to bolster
digital entrepreneurship in Hong Kong. The newly-
established Cyberport Macro Fund will inject further energy
and momentum into our ecosystem.

Meanwhile, Smart-Space is expected to undergo a 50%
expansion in total square footage to a total floor area of
more than 120,000 square feet to enhance our offering to
local and overseas companies. Cyberport's first Smart-
Space FinTech will begin operation in by end of 2016.

In short, Cyberport is making every effort necessary to
support entrepreneurs as they launch, build and grow their
ventures in the dynamic, highly competitive digital tech
markets in Hong Kong and beyond.
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After start-ups got their ventures off the ground and as they
mature their ambitious founders will surely look to put their
start-ups in a fast moving orbit of expansion. For growth-
driven start-ups ready to scale up and expand beyond Hong
Kong, Cyberport's third pillar, “Empowering Global
Ambition”, is targeted at helping them access global
markets and make a significant and impactful entry onto the
international stage.

By leveraging Cyberport's well-structured programmes,
extensive network of industry partners, and the strong
alliances we forged with relevant authorities, investment
community, digital tech companies and academia, start-ups
are empowered to make bold strides forward to realise their
ambitions for global expansion. Cyberport's comprehensive
support which includes mentorship from seasoned industry
elites, financial assistance and international connections,
will go a long way towards helping these future captains of
industries navigate the challenging waters of international
expansion with confidence.

How we are doing it

Cyberport is a steadfast partner at every inflection point of
our start-ups’ development offering access to valuable
insight and advice from experienced mentors well-attuned
to the various growth stages in business cycles when these
entrepreneurs most need it. Indeed, behind many
successful tech entrepreneurs stand mighty mentors: Mark
Zuckerberg was mentored by Steve Jobs; Bill Gates had PC
inventor Ed Roberts and Chad Dickerson of Etsy had
Caterina Fake from Flickr.
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Over the years, we have dedicated a lot of efforts in making
the right connections and cultivating solid relationships with
like-minded entrepreneurs who are critical assets to
enhance our support for our start-ups. Cyberport has built a
dynamic and formidable platform with sophisticated tools in
place focussed on empowering start-ups near and far. For
start-ups with an eye on global markets, Cyberport
Accelerator Support Programme provides them with up to
HK$300,000 of funding to join the world-renowned
accelerators. These celebrated programme operators
include 500 Startups, Accenture's FinTech Innovation Lab
Asia-Pacific, Chinaccelerator, Microsoft Ventures, Plug and
Play, Y Combinator, etc. Start-ups benefit from gaining new
perspectives and insight from interacting with fellow
entrepreneurs and experienced mentors; building strong
business networks, inspiring them on ideas and practical
initiatives to propel their businesses to the next level.

While we delight in seeing the lofty ambitions for global
expansion from these entrepreneurs, Cyberport remains
laser-focussed on our core mission to develop the local
entrepreneurial scene. We have been relentlessly building
an extensive and growing international network so that our
start-ups can capitalise on the resultant opportunities
emerging therefrom to connect with mentors around the
world. During the year, Accenture’s FinTech Innovation Lab
Asia-Pacific, a prestigious FinTech-focused accelerator
programme, took place at Cyberport for the second
consecutive year. The programme took in seven
outstanding FinTech start-ups from Hong Kong, India,
Israel, UK and Australia, and nurtured them at Cyberport. In
fact, two Cyberport start-ups, Bitspark and Ironfly
Technologies, were amongst these coveted chosen ones.
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“Marketing can often be a
headache for start-ups. But
through Cyberport’s connections,
we were able to introduce Ironfly
Technologies to the public and
let more people know about our
company.”

— Kevin Mak, CEQ, Ironfly Technologies
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To enrich the accelerator mix in Hong Kong, Cyberport has
successfully diversified its accelerators’ outreach to bring in
the notable Wearable loT World from Silicon Valley to Hong
Kong and US-Pan Asia Internet of Things (loT)
Superhighway Accelerator, it is Wearable loT World's first
accelerator in Asia, which focuses on driving 10T innovation
and entrepreneurship in Hong Kong and Asia. Dedicated to
helping start-ups in the areas of wearables, loT and
emerging technologies, the Accelerator chose Cyberport as
the official partner as well as the very home for its executive
office and lab, which are indeed tremendous success for
Cyberport. With a shared vision to foster loT innovation and
entrepreneurship in Hong Kong and Asia, Wearable IoT
World and Cyberport will continue to join forces in
accelerating global loT development as well as encouraging
the adoption and widespread use of interconnected
machines and devices.

As an impetus to help our start-ups develop and grow a
global business network, Cyberport organised 13
delegations to Mainland China, and overseas to North
America and Japan. During the year under review,
Cyberport brought over 30 start-ups to flagship tech
industry events in Mainland China. Cyberport delegates to
the International Soft China seized the day by showcasing
their ideas at the event, visited ZhongGuanCun, the biggest
entrepreneurs’ cradle in Mainland China, and met with
venture capitalists. On another positive note, bright minds
of Cyberport start-ups were celebrated at TechCrunch
Beijing and Shanghai with their products featured at the
Cyberport Hong Kong Pavilion. They were also invited to join
panel discussions and meetings with prominent venture
capitalists.
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Mainland China with its vast population and vibrant
economy presents an immense business opportunity to
start-ups. To facilitate our start-ups in securing a firmer
foothold and a soft landing on the market, Cyberport
opened a second Mainland China representative office in
Guangzhou to offer timely and effective assistance during
their expansion in the market so that they could fully
capitalise on any business relationships gained at
delegations and events’ participation.

Beyond the lucrative Mainland China market, overseas
markets offer a horizon of opportunities for start-ups.
During the year, Cyberport led overseas delegations to the
US and Canada, visited Finovate Spring 2015 and TieCon
2015. Start-ups who joined the US and Canada delegations
were offered chances to join business-matching and
networking sessions and took part in visits to the
headquarters of Cisco and Microsoft.
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“It is every start-up’s dream
to scale. Cyberport has
connected us to their
network of overseas
business partners, which has
contributed to our expansion
into Singapore and Taiwan
within just 8 months of our

launch.”
— Timothy Yu, Co-founder, Snapask

[B—BURLENSE  ERFE
EREL—EBE BEBREREM
BN BHENEIE > BESnapaskE
EHEENEAR  FEERMH
REARZEFMEREETE -

— Snapask [ 88 A R 16 #

BREISEERGRAR
2015/16 4 4R 5 5



Emp owerlng Global Ambition

HETXEEERES

Emp owerlng Global Ambition

EBTREEERES

-

While Cyberport identified key strategic overseas markets
for Hong Kong start-ups, we deemed it crucial that they
could interact with global industry partners in Hong Kong.
As such, we have devoted much time and effort in
successfully inviting these global experts to come to Hong
Kong to share their expertise here. In May 2015, Cyberport
has brought FinTechCity, a quintessential FinTech icon
based in London, to co-organise the Cyberport FinTech
Innovation Forum in Hong Kong whereby global experts
shared their perspectives on FinTech with start-up
founders, investors and bankers in Hong Kong. Another
feather in the cap for our Partners’ team was the
introduction of DEMO CHINA in Hong Kong as a result of
Cyberport's efforts. The event which formerly took place in
10 cities in Mainland China made its inaugural appearance
at Cyberport in the year. Cyberport was well-respected in
the market and recently garnered Cyzone's top 10 Best
Entrepreneurship Parks in China award in 2015 thus
reinforcing DEMO CHINA's decision to make Cyberport the
venue for its Hong Kong debut.
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Looking ahead

The efforts we made in the year in expanding our network of
strategic alliances globally and regionally were well-received
by our community. The start-ups appreciated very much
the mentorship and connections made possible through
Cyberport initiatives as well as the 150 tech-related events
held at Cyberport during the year under review. We have
continued to embark on fulfilling our public mission by
developing a comprehensive entrepreneurial ecosystem.
We have a track record of success as we have assisted 43
start-ups in their expansion outside of Hong Kong in the
year. The close to HK$570 million cumulative funding raised
by Cyberport start-ups bears testament not only to the
innovative, entrepreneurial talent of their founders but also
the commitment of Cyberport’'s team in supporting them
with a suite of programmes. That said, we will not rest on
our laurels but will remain focused on fulfilling our public
mission to be the key connector for start-ups and
springboard for innovators in Hong Kong and overseas.
After all, innovation and entrepreneurial spirit knows no
boundaries. We will continue to leverage our connections
and work with relevant authorities, private sector and
academia to help Hong Kong's talented entrepreneurs
realise their dreams. The Cyberport Macro Fund, set to be
launched in 2016/17, will add further momentum to support
our start-ups and catalyse the digital technology
development in Hong Kong.

FRERR

CEBEE—F BB ETARBRERETH
H“Hﬁ BEAEAKX  BRAZBBLRKEN
BE EFEHBEETHNRBEMEESE
1501I o —INPATE %ﬁ(ﬁ%%%ﬁkﬁzﬁﬁ’]@%‘iﬁ
BN BRAIFLERE - %Uﬁ/’éi%“ra
Tﬁ%%élf%%%ﬂﬁﬂmiiﬁj%/%?ﬁ% EEERSES
REBER - AR B K - BISEMRIL XM
%%E’U&ﬁ%ﬁi CBREELNSTEET - U LY
AR EEBUAHAERMNEE H0E
e maﬁﬂ%lﬁ%;‘%fiﬁ—lt1E‘J%§+%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ
AL AP AGE o MEAREIRIE - BT SR LE
¥ BB NEERTEGTAAREE 1
BENRBIMEEVIBIEENNBA - BIFTEN
BT - EJ%ﬁM?’E BRI ERR - HAIH
FRBESNES REREEE LAKREL
Sy AL WFIJLETE LS E BRI R
BIZEE - R 2016/17 FEH L& [
KRERIEES | BRAIEZT AR FIAREHR
RENS] - HEBBEISEHRNER -

ERYFEEERROAE
2015/16 F R 57



Cyberport Cares
EiEtE

Cyberport
Cares™

>

53

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
2015/16 Annual Report

| £2y
=

Cyberport Cares
BiEtE

While our public mission is at the very core
of Cyberport’s initiatives, we are also caring
for our community. We are committed to
embedding in our policies actions for the
benefit of our stakeholders and the
community in which we operate.

We care for our staff’s well-being and their
personal and career growth, as well as
making a macro contribution towards
environmental conservation and sustainable
development. Cyberport takes an active role
in integrating these efforts into everything
we do, and we will continue with our society
care initiatives.
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f Care for the Environment

Greening and energy saving initiatives
In 2015/16, Cyberport continued to carry out major
infrastructure improvements including air-
o conditioning system and other energy-saving

measures throughout the campus. These included
joining the Energy Saving Charter which pledged to
maintain an average indoor temperature of
between 24°C and 26°C during the summer
months by lowering air conditioning levels in
various areas at Cyberport. In addition, we installed
timers to control operating hours of light fittings at
common areas in Smart-Spaces.
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Indoor air and water quality
improvements

Our persistent efforts in indoor air and water quality
improvements received due commendations from
various organisations garnering the Indoor Air
Quality Certificate (Excellent Class) for the 12th
consecutive year, and the Gold Certificate from the
Quality Water Recognition Scheme for Buildings
from the Water Supplies Department of the HKSAR
Government.
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Source separation of waste

Cyberport has placed a major focus on source
separation of waste recycling materials from paper,
plastic, aluminium cans, fluorescent tubes, food
waste, cooking oil, rechargeable battery, wood
pallets, polystyrene, and even clothes. We also
worked closely with food and beverage operators at
The Arcade, Le Meridien Cyberport and others in the
neighbourhood to collect glass bottles for recycling.
As a strong supporter of the Environmental
Protection Department’'s Programme on Source
Separation of Commercial and Industrial Waste,
Cyberport has been repeatedly recognised for our
relentless effort in waste reduction and
environmental protection. In the reporting period, we
were again honoured with the Class of Excellence
Wastewi$e Label award.
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Care for Employees

Cyberport value our employees’ well-being and
we strive to ensure a happy, healthy work-life
balance for them. We have introduced to all staff
the Employee Abundance Programme (EAP).
This programme offers a one-stop professional
service which includes seminars and various
resources to help enhance the quality of life, from
physical, psychological, personal, family to
professional well-being of our staff.

MBS
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People and Corporate Development

We constantly invest in on-going training and development of our staff in order to help them realise their full
potential. Through both internal and external training courses, we enable our staff to hone their technical

competencies, language skills, people management abilities, as well as stay up-to-date with compliance
knowledge through various themed workshops.
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Team Building Care for community
Team-building workshops in the reporting period provided high-impact learning, increased team skills and CyberRun for Rehab — Healthy steps in Cyberport
communications, and improved morale and productivity. Staff benefited through experiencing a sense of We partnered with Hong Kong Society of Rehabilitation to organise a charity run named CyberRun for Rehab,
accomplishment in working as a group to assemble 12 bikes. The team had learnt ways to improve to enhance public awareness of healthy living and raise fund for the people with disability. It was hosted in the
communication skills while contributing to the community. We extended the beneficiaries of our team building evening of 8 November 2015. Apart from the run, fun booths, health check station and lucky draw were also
workshop from staff to the community, the 12 bikes assembled by Cyberport staff were donated to a charity organised where around 1,000 participants and their families had enjoyed a nice evening at Cyberport.
organisation — Treats. The organisation donated the bikes to children in primary schools on behalf of
Cyberport.
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We are confident that together with our staff's commitment  BUSEEEM & | RIEE - BRE SIS B A
and zealous passion for the greater good of the society, we R Z# - P ET—0 BREZFHHE

can make even more significant progress in community & o RERMPBELE N AHEFIAEZED
care in the years to come. At Cyberport, we care! MEE - EHEZER -
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Corporate
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Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company Limited (the “Company”), being a
limited company incorporated under the
Companies Ordinance, is one of the three
private and wholly-owned companies set up
by the Government of the HKSAR via the
Financial Secretary Incorporated to oversee
the development, operation and
management of the Cyberport Project.
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Our Commitment

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance. We believe that good corporate
governance provides the foundation for good corporate
performance and is essential to accomplishing our public
missions, meeting the expectations of our stakeholders and
attaining long-term and sustainable growth. We have
therefore adopted accountability, transparency, fairness,
ethics and integrity as the cornerstones of our corporate
governance framework.

[ Corporate Governance Structure
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The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) has the overall
responsibility for the leadership, control and performance of
the Company. It governs and leads the Company in a
responsible and effective manner. It establishes the
strategic direction of the Company and monitors its
performance.

The Company has an effective Board which acts collectively
to set the corporate strategies and approve operating plans
proposed by Management. Each Board Member has a duty
to act in good faith and in the best interests of the Company.

To ensure effective discharge of duties by Board Members,
the Board assumes the responsibility of ensuring that each
Board Member has spent sufficient time to attend to the
affairs of the Company.
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Board Composition

The Board consists of 14 non-executive Members, including
two Government directors and 12 non-Government
directors. Non-executive Members bring an external
perspective, constructively challenge and advise on
proposals on strategy, and monitor the performance of
Management. This structure effectively ensures that the
Board would comprise a majority of independent members
and is conducive to maintaining an independent and
objective Board decision making process.

All Board Members are appointed by the shareholders
without receiving any honorarium for a specific term and
can be re-appointed upon expiry of their terms of office.

Board Members come from varied but relevant
backgrounds with diverse skills and experience. While two
of them are from the Government, 12 of them come from
various business fields, including IT, finance, commercial,
accounting, surveying and academia. Biographical details
of the Board Members are set out in the section titled
“Board of Directors™ on pages 20 to 29.

Board Composition EER K EAE
(as of 31 July 2016) (B2 2016 7 A31H)
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Board Diversity

We recognise the importance of ensuring an appropriate
balance of skills, knowledge, experience, and gender on the
Board to our corporate governance. Our Board Members,
with diverse backgrounds, have both the breadth and depth
of relevant experience to steer and oversee the business of
the Company, so as to ensure that value is delivered in a
sustainable manner and the Company's interest is
protected. The current mix of our Board Members is
balanced and well represented by IT professionals, business
executives, government representatives and other industry
professionals and leaders.

Induction

On appointment to the Board, each newly appointed Board
Member is given a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction programme. The programme consists of meeting
with the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") and Management,
briefings on the Company operations and major
developments, and visits to the Company facilities. New
Board Members are able to familiarise themselves with the
Company’s objectives, strategies, business, operations and
internal controls, as well as the general and specific duties
of directors.

All Board Members are also given a Directors’ Handbook on
their appointment, which sets out, amongst other things,
directors’ duties, code of conduct, declaration of interests
and the Terms of Reference of the Board Committees. The
Directors’ Handbook is updated from time to time to reflect
developments in those areas.

Recognising that development is an ongoing process, Board
Members were invited to attend forums and conferences on
information technology in the year under review.
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Board Functions

The Board, chaired by Mr Paul CHOW prior to his retirement
on 4 June 2016 and subsequently by Dr Lee G. LAM, directs
the management of the business and affairs of the
Company. The overall management of the Company's
business is vested in the Board. The Board has delegated
the day-to-day management of the Company's business to
the Executive Committee, and focuses its attention on
providing overall strategic guidance to the Company on its
business development, finance as well as oversight over
corporate performance and governance. These include
financial statements, significant changes in accounting
policy, annual budget, material contracts and
arrangements, strategies for future growth, major financing
arrangements and investments, corporate governance
functions, risk management strategies and treasury
policies.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The posts of Chairman and CEO are distinct and separate.
The non-executive Chairman is responsible for managing
and leading the Board in setting the Company’s overall
directions, strategies and policies, as well as monitoring the
performance of the CEO. Apart from making sure that
adequate information about the Company's business is
provided to the Board on a timely basis, the Chairman
provides leadership for the Board, and ensures views on all
principal and appropriate issues are exchanged in a timely
manner, by encouraging all Board Members to make a full
and effective contribution to the discussion. Under the
Chairman’s guidance, all decisions have reflected the
consensus of the Board. The CEO is appointed by the Board
as a remunerated full-time employee of the Company, and
is responsible to the Board for managing the business of the
Company. The roles and responsibilities of the Chairman of
the Board and the CEO are separate, enhancing
independence and accountability.

Board Proceedings

The Board meets in person regularly, and all Board
Members have full and timely access to relevant information
and may take independent professional advice at the
Company's expense, if necessary, in accordance with the
approved procedures.

The schedule of Board and Committee meetings for the
following year is usually fixed by the Company Secretary
and agreed by the Chairman, before being communicated
to other Board Members in the third quarter of each year.
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The draft agenda for regular Board meetings is prepared by
the Company Secretary and approved by the Chairman of
the Board. The agenda together with board papers are sent
to all Board Members at least five working days before the
intended date of the Board meeting.

At regular Board meetings, Management reports to the
Board on business, including the Company operations,
progress of projects, financial performance, legal issues,
corporate governance, risk management, human resources,
sustainability, corporate responsibility and outlook.
Together with the discussions at Board meetings, this
ensures that Board Members have a general understanding
of the Company's business and sufficient information to
make informed decisions for the benefit of the Company.

Meeting minutes are sent to Board Members for comment
and record within a reasonable time. Matters to be resolved
at Board meetings are decided by a majority of votes from
the Board Members allowed to vote, although the usual
practice is that decisions reflect the consensus of the Board.
The process of the Board is reviewed from time to time to
keep abreast of regulatory changes and best corporate
governance practices.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the
correct Board procedures are followed and advises the
Board on all corporate governance matters. All Board
Members have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary.
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Board Meetings

During the year under review, four Board meetings were
held with an average attendance rate of 85%. Attendance
records of individual Board Members are set out on page 81.

A total of 32 Board papers and 18 sets of written resolutions
were considered or resolved.

Key matters considered/resolved:

. Cyberport Three-Year Strategic Plan 2014/15-
2016/17 — Progress Update

. Annual Budget 2016/17 and Financial Estimates
2017/18 and 2018/19

. Corporate goals and performance measures

. Directions of Cyberport — 2016 Policy Address

. Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements

. Management accounts and reports

. Annual Review on Corporate Governance Function

. Memberships of Board Committees

. Internal Control and Risk and Business Continuity
Management

. Staff remuneration, pay structure and corporate
performance assessment

. Annual pay review

. Performance assessment and bonus for Management

. Establishment of FinTech Smart-Space

. Transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance

. Cyberport Project Completion Update

Apart from Board meetings, the Chairman had sessions
with Board Members without the presence of Management
to discuss human resources matters.
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Strategic Planning

The Board has continued to review the strategies of the
Company to identify and assess the opportunities and
challenges the Company may face, and to develop a
planned course of action for the Company to generate and
preserve long-term value.

During the year, Cyberport Three-Year Strategic Plan
2014/15-2016/17 was reviewed and modified so as to
continue its public mission to drive Hong Kong's ICT
development. The Company will continue its investment
plan of HK$200 million over the three-year period to
implement strategies to create a One-Stop Platform for ICT
start-ups, as well as to engage a greater audience.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Board is responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company, and of the Company'’s result and
cash flows for the year. In preparing the financial statements
for the year, the Board has adopted appropriate accounting
policies and, apart from those new and amended
accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, has applied them consistently. Judgments and
estimates have been made that are prudent and
reasonable.

In support of the above, the financial statements presented
to the Board have been reviewed by Management. For both
the annual report and financial statements, Management is
responsible for finalising them with the external auditor and
then the Audit Committee.

In addition, all new and amended accounting standards and
requirements, as well as changes in accounting policies
adopted by the Company have been discussed and
approved at the Audit Committee before adoption by the
Company.

Board Members acknowledge their responsibilities for
ensuring that the preparation of the annual financial
statements of the Company is in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.
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Code of Conduct

The Company is fully committed to the principle of honesty,
integrity and fair play in the delivery of products and
services to the public.

The Company is a public body under the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (“POBO"). Accordingly, Board Members
are regarded as “public servants” for the purpose of POBO.

The Board is collectively responsible for the management
and operations of the Company. Board Members, both
collectively and individually, are expected to exercise
fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and diligence to a
standard at least commensurate with the standard
established by the laws and regulations of Hong Kong.

Delegating the functions of the Board is permissible but
does not absolve Board Members from their responsibilities
or from applying the required levels if they pay attention to
the Company's affairs only at formal meetings. At a
minimum, Board Members must take an active interest in
the Company's affairs and obtain a general understanding
of the Company’s business.

Board Members should regularly attend and actively
participate in Board and Committee meetings, and prepare
for them by reviewing all materials provided by
Management.

Board Members are required on their first appointment, on
an annual basis, and as and when necessary thereafter to
declare any interests that are or may be relevant and
material to the business and operations of the Company.
They are also required to inform the Company Secretary of
any changes in their declared interests or any new interests
that may arise as soon as they become aware of such
interests. A Register of Directors’ Interests is kept by the
Company Secretary and is accessible by the Board
Members.

Every Board Member is also required to observe his/her
ongoing disclosure obligations (including, without limitation,
requirements to notify changes in personal particulars to
the Company Secretary and/or circumstances that may
affect his/her independence, and to declare material
interests, if any, in any transaction, arrangement or contract
or a proposed transaction, arrangement or contract with
the Company) under the Companies Ordinance.
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A Board Member cannot cast a vote on any contract,
transaction, arrangement or any other kind of proposal in
which he/she has an interest and which he/she knows is
material except with the approval of the Board. For this
purpose, interests of a person who is connected with a
Board Member (including any of his/her associates) are
treated as the interests of the Board Member himself/
herself. A Board Member may not be included in the
quorum for such part of a meeting that relates to a
resolution he/she is not allowed to vote on, but he/she shall
be included in the quorum for all other parts of that meeting.
This reduces potential conflicts which might otherwise arise
between the Company's business and an individual Board
Member's other interests or appointments.

Board Committees

During the year, there are four standing Committees,
namely the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the
Entrepreneurship Committee and the Remuneration
Committee under the Board. Their Terms of Reference set
out the function, composition of members, authority, duties,
frequency of meeting, and reporting responsibilities of the
Committees. These Committees are accountable to the
Board for their recommendations and decisions. The Terms
of Reference of Board Committees are reviewed from time
to time in the light of the Company's evolving operational,
business and development needs.

The meeting processes of Board Committees follow closely
those of the Board. The interface between the Board and
Board Committees are:

. All Board Members may attend any Committee
meetings as observers

. Board Members are free to access the papers of any
Committee meetings through the Company Secretary

. Full minutes of Committee meetings are sent to Board
Members for information

The following sets out details of Board Committees, their
memberships (as of 31 July 2016), principal duties and key
matters considered or resolved during the year.
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Meetings:

Chairman:

Members:

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee ("Excom”) is responsible for
monitoring the performance of the Company and ensuring
that the Company has been operating in consistency with
the corporate missions and the annual budget/business
plan as approved by the Board.

Membership: Seven members

DrLee G. LAM

Mr CHEUK Wing-hing

Mr Duncan CHIU

Ms Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak

Dr Edwin LEE Kan-hing

Mr Alfred WONG Kwok-kuen
Mr Peter YAN King-shun

The Excom convened 10 meetings during
the year with an average attendance rate of
90%. A total of 38 Excom papers were
considered or resolved. Attendance
records of individual members are set out
onpage 81.

Principal duties:

Exercise the functions and responsibilities of the Board
between regular Board meetings

Serve as a sounding board for the Chairman of the
Board in the leadership and oversight of the business
and affairs of the Company

Help coordinate the activities among Board Committees
Review and approve the Company’s policies

Oversee the Annual Budget

Review and approve the investment strategies of the
Company

Monitor the execution of the Company's strategic
plans and the operations of all business units of the
Company

Plan and allocate resources, human, financial and
otherwise, for the execution and implementation of the
approved business plans and corporate development
strategies

Key matters considered/resolved:

/6

Annual Budget and Mid-Year Forecast

Monthly management accounts and report

Approval of Company policies

Investment strategies and performance of the
Company's investment portfolio

Strategic cooperative agreements

Approval of material tenders, programmes and
contracts

Cyberport Macro Fund Implementation Framework

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
2015/16 Annual Report

BITEES
HMITZEGARERARANEKR  BREAR
AMEESTAECXAE - YNTAKHE
ERFUNFEVHIAENEBAINENL
KERE: 74
L MERBIEL
FXE : KB
ERsZER e A
LSBT
= iRFE+
=B
IRERE
%%: ¥ﬂTTK/\EE/\ﬁEW/\EIEﬂT].O/A
GF - THHEER/IO%  #
m%ﬁﬁﬁé%@ﬁﬁo%ﬁé
B s TSN E 8L A -
i?ﬁ;

EEERBITTHSEAINNEER - BT
EERMNBEMET

- HHEERTIFEENEBEARARRMNER
ME

HRASEFZEG LRI
ey MEBEZAREZERR
EEFEMBIEE

e MBERA R B ZRE R

+ EEARRRBETEINMITERL  UEA
RIFTA XM BN 2 EF
© RROTNERERENER SRR

REREE > FHEIMDEAS - BIEMEME
o

REINEIERSEE:

- FEMKREEMNTHER
FHEERE hRE
FHAFBER
RERBERARBIREAEG 2RI

« REESFEHE
- EHREKRBFER  FFEMEH

- [BIEERERIXRES | ZEERE

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee ("AC") is responsible for overseeing
and reviewing the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control, risk management system, regulatory compliance,
and the Company's internal audit function. It is responsible
for overseeing the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and the application of financial reporting
principles, and the Company's relationship with the external
and internal auditors.

Membership: Six members

Chairperson:

Members:

Meetings:

Ms Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak

Mr Duncan CHIU

Mr LAU Chun-kong

Mr Douglas SO Cheung-tak

Ms Jeny YEUNG Mei-chun

Mr Davey CHUNG (government
representative)

The AC convened two meetings during the
year with an average attendance rate of
88%. A total of nine AC papers were
considered or resolved. Attendance
records of individual members are set out
on page 81.

Principal duties:

Review financial statements

Make recommendations on the appointment of
external auditor, approve its remuneration and terms
of engagement and oversee the Company's relations
with the external auditor

Review accounting policies

Oversee internal controls, financial controls, risk
management system and internal audit function
Report on matters in relation to corporate governance
practices

Key matters considered/resolved:

Annual Audited Financial Statements

External Auditor's Report, objectivity and effectiveness
of audit process

Appointment of external auditor and approval of audit
fee and non-audit services

Annual corporate governance, risk management and
internal control review

Annual internal audit programme and internal audit
reports

Adequacy of resources and effectiveness of the
internal audit function

Internal policy and procedures on staff benefits
governance, payment authorisation and
whistleblowing
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Entrepreneurship Committee PEREEZFES Key matters considered/resolved: &%%E’JIEEIE

. Cyberport Guangdong — Hong Kong Young SEBERBSFEIZETE

and

Members:

Meetings:

Chairman:

The Entrepreneurship Committee ("EC") is responsible for
overseeing the administration and management of start-up

entrepreneurship programmes and events

implemented by the Company, such as the Cyberport
Incubation Programme and the Cyberport Creative Micro
Fund ("CCMF™").

Membership: Six members

Mr Alfred WONG Kwok-kuen

Professor Philip CHAN Ching-ho

Dr Edwin LEE Kan-hing

Mr Gabriel PANG Tsz-kit

Mr Peter YAN King-shun

Mr Davey CHUNG (government
representative)

The EC convened four meetings during the
year with an average attendance rate of
60%. A total of 10 EC papers were
considered or resolved. Attendance
records of individual members are set out
onpage 81.

Principal duties:

/8

Oversee the administration and management of the
start-up and entrepreneurship programmes and
events implemented by the Company
Monitor and review the operational or financial plans
and proposals, administrative matters, business
directions and strategies in relation to the following
three aspects:
- Sparking creative ideas through the CCMF
Scheme
—  Nurturing tech start-ups through the Cyberport
Incubation Programme
—  Boosting tech start-ups’ fundraising capability
Approve the appointment and composition of
the Entrepreneurship Committee Advisory Group
("ECAG") which comprises venture capitalists,
business executives, tech industry professionals,
academics, and trade association members
Approve applications for the start-up and
entrepreneurship programmes of the Company
Monitor and review the progress of the start-ups of the
programmes

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
2015/16 Annual Report
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Entrepreneur Programme

Cyberport Shenzhen — Hong Kong Young
Entrepreneur Programme

Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme
Amendments to Guides and Notes for the Applicants
— CCMF and Cyberport Incubation Programme
Proposal to revise the Team Composition Requirement
in the Cross-Border Programmes of CCMF Scheme
Amendments of Terms of Reference of ECAG
Cyberport University Partnership Programme

Vetting of Cyberport Incubation Programme and
CCMF applications
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Remuneration Committee FMEER Meeting Attendance SEHELSE

(1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016)

(20154 A1BE2016E3A317)

The Remuneration Committee ("RC") is responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on organisational
structure and policies on staffing, remuneration,
employment, discipline and dismissal, with reference to the
Company's overall goals and objectives.

Board Members EZRME
Membership: Five members MEEE: 5% s
Paul CHOW (Retired from BXRB(RZE—1~F 4/4 10/10 - - -
Chairman: Mr Peter YAN King-shun FE ERELEE the Board on 4 June 2016) AARBREES)
Philip CHAN BIER 3/4 - - 3/4 -
Members: Mr CHEUK Wing-hing K8 : FRELTE CHEUK Wing-hing (Appointed 5k & (R 2015 % 2/2 4/4! - - -1
Mr Humphrey CHOI Chor-ching ERBLE as Director on 20 November 11A20REZRTA
Mr Douglas SO Cheung-tak BEmtE 2015) (includingattendance ~ EE)(BEAEE
Ms Jeny YEUNG Mei-chun BEL L+ by alternate) BEZHERY)
ARE
Meetings: The RC convened two meetings during the — &#& : FHZEERFAXEBHT 2R Humphrey CHO —ER S — - - o
year with an average attendance rate of g% THHEXRI0%  HF Rosanna CHOI SEE 4/4 10/10 2/e - -
80%. A total of four RC papers were ZANTHEEE X EXE Susie HO (Resigned from {5 (R 20155 2/2 4/6? - - 2/22
considered or resolved. Attendance B E e TN E8LE © the Board on 20 November A0 BREES)
records of individual members are set out 2015) (including attendance (PREEEHEZL
on page 81. by alternate) HERE)
L . - LAU Chun-kong (Appointedas %I (R 20154 4/4 - 1/2 - -
Principal duties: . TREE - o Director on 5 June 2015) 6RASREZERES)
«  Review staffing, remuneration and employment  « el B TARS - FINEMABIBE R LR , &
oolicies and strategies BE Edwin LEE FIRE 2/4 8/10 - 2/4 -
- Advise the Board on staff-related issues, including + HtEB THBNSEERESERIELER Gabriel PANG ZTH 474 - - 2/4 -
annual corporate goals and performance measures, HEFaEFECERE  RBEHE L Douglas SO e 3/4 - 2/2 - 1/2
grading and pay structure, variable pay and retirement BB R H AR - ZBE I R KER G Elizabeth TSE (including HEWK(ELRIES 4/4 _ _ _ _
schemes £l ke
. Review the criteria for assessing employee « i EBIXRIBHIGHER  WAEEHIE attendance by alternate) ﬁz%m}\%
performance and make recommendations to the s Alfred WONG AE 3/4 10710 _ 44 _
Board Peter YAN EE8E 2/4 8/10 - 1/4 2/2
«  Review the salary increase and annual performance « EBEZSBEEABMN—REE N NFME Jeny YEUNG BEY 4/4 - 2/2 - 1/2
bonus for the senior executives and general staff and ERBESIEAL  YRESRELES
make recommendations to the Board Notes: Wiz -
«  Review the performance of the CEO, COO, CFO, CTO .« ZRERHEZHBBANTIERBIELZLE
and the Company, with reference to the Board's 5 BITHAH BN WKEE- 1. Appointed as a member of the Committee on 20 November 2015, 1 M2015%11 A20 AEEAEERMKE -
approved Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs") and BT AEMARMRBED R
objectives 2. Ceased to be a member of the Committee on 20 November 2015. 2. MR201511 A20 BRTZEE/KE -
Key matters considered/resolved: REEMWTEEIE ; 3. Appointed as a member of the Committee on 10 July 2015. 3. M2015F7 AI0 R EZERZEGKE -
«  Annual review of staff remuneration - BIFEBENOFER
«  Annual corporate performance assessmentand award  «  FEMERFTEMNE TS5
of variable pay for staff
«  Termination policy . BEERECR
. Corporate goals and performance measurements . TERERRBEHE /A
«  Performance review of the CEO, COO, CFO, CTO and  «  BRITHRAEE - ZiEHE - BIFSAEE - $ir
their variable pay BEEMFRIA R B E IS TIRE
8 O Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited BBHBEEESEERAR 8 1
2015/16 Annual Report 2015/16
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Meeting Procedures

The Board and Committees convene meetings on a regular
basis. Special meetings will be held as and when necessary.
Management circulates papers prior to the respective
meetings to provide members adequate information in a
timely manner to facilitate their deliberation of the issues
and decision-making. The respective Board/Committee
Secretaries record the major points of discussion,
recommendations, decisions and action items arising from
the meetings. Outstanding matters are followed up by the
relevant departments, and progress updates are reported
at subsequent Board/Committee meetings.

Management and Staff

Management and staff, led by the Company’s CEO, are
responsible for managing the Company's day-to-day
operations and implementing the strategies and directions
determined by the Board. The performance of
Management is reviewed with reference to the KPIs and
objectives approved by the Board. The annual emoluments
of the Company’s five highest paid employees by band are
disclosed under note 8 to the financial statements on page
120.

Guidance on the ethical behaviour of the Company has been
well defined in the Company’s Employee Code of Conduct
and Business Ethics (the “Code”). From time to time, the
Code will be reviewed and fine-tuned, covering such issues
as prevention of bribery, conflict of interest, acceptance of
gifts and advantages, handling of confidential information
and preservation of secrecy, intellectual property, and
outside business or employment. ICAC is invited to give
briefings on prevention of bribery and conflict of interest to
the employees of the Company on a regular basis. Staff
members are also reminded of the need for compliance with
the Code from time to time.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Company aims to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance and enhance transparency and accountability.
The external and internal audit systems are instrumental in
this mission.

8 2 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
2015/16 Annual Report
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External Audit

KPMG was re-appointed as the Company's external auditor
to conduct the audit of its financial statements.

The main purpose of the external audit is to provide
independent assurance to the Board and shareholders that
the annual financial statements of the Company are fairly
stated. The external auditor plays an important
independent role in expressing an opinion on the financial
statements based on their audit, and meets with the Audit
Committee to discuss the nature and scope of the audit
prior to the commencement of the work if necessary and to
report on findings. The external auditor also reports internal
control recommendations identified as part of the audit
together with management responses, if any.

For the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016, there was no
non-audit service provided by KPMG.

Internal Audit

The internal audit is primarily responsible for reviewing the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal control procedures
and monitoring compliance with them. The Company has
outsourced its internal audit function to an independent
professional advisory firm to monitor the Company's
internal governance and provide a basis for the Board to
assess the risk management and internal control system
maintained and operated by Management. The Audit
Committee directly oversees the work performed by the
internal auditor. Independent reviews of financial, business
and functional operations and activities have been
conducted with a focus on higher risk areas of the
Company. The internal audit plan is reviewed and agreed to
by the Audit Committee in advance. Each year, the Audit
Committee reviews the results of the internal audit and
evaluates the impact of the findings and the proposed
management action plans.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Company has a formal whistleblowing policy in place to
encourage and guide its staff to raise serious concerns
internally in a responsible manner, without any risk of
retribution. The Company also encourages other
stakeholders to raise concerns, in confidence, about
suspected misconduct, malpractice or irregularities in any
matters related to the Company.
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Transparency

The Company reports annually to the Information
Technology and Broadcasting Panel of the Legislative
Council regarding the Cyberport Project, including its
financial performance.

To enhance transparency and openness, the Company
voluntarily discloses its compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The individual attendance
records of Members at the Board and Committee meetings
is also reported on page 81.

With a view to maintain open and transparent
communication with external stakeholders, the Company
continues to connect with the community by taking
advantage of multiple channels and tools. These include the
official website, monthly e-newsletter(s), press briefings
and interviews, and participation in a variety of local and
overseas exhibitions and conferences. Annual reports and
information on our programmes and offerings are disclosed
on our website for public access. The Company also make
use of social media such as Facebook, LinkedIn and Twitter
for promotions and information dissemination.

Delegation of Authority

The authority of the Board and the levels of authority
delegated to the Committees and Management is clearly
defined and documented in the Delegation of Authority
Policy. Such delegation of authority is reviewed on a regular
basis to ensure that it meets the business and operational
needs.

8 4 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
2015/16 Annual Report
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Corporate Governance Practices

Although the Company is not required to comply with the
CG Code, we have applied its principles and voluntarily
complied with the code provisions therein generally except
for those as set out below:

A4l

A42t0A43

Ab.1toAb5.6

A6.4

Code Provisions

PRI

Non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election.

FRTEFTNLZEIEEAREEELH  YARTS
i 5 o

These code provisions deal with the
appointment of directors to fill a casual
vacancy, appointment of independent non-
executive directors and retirement by rotation
of directors.

BUTABXERZEEETNERARRE
REBILFATES  UREFHWTRE -

These code provisions deal with the
nomination committee.

N

Ik

SLTRIGREERZEE AR -

Directors must comply with obligations under
the Model Code for Securities Transactions
and the Board should establish guidelines for
relevant employees in respect of their dealings
in the securities of the Company.

EEVAETETESRXZNRESTRD M
EZRNTENHHEEESEARESFSEERE
185l -

EERE
BEAAREABT(REERTAD - BRM
BTG RANEETT  WESHEITT
AIMERSCH) — MR TE » HEDATRBRSN

Reason for Deviation
{m Bk R H

This provision is not applicable to the
Company. Directors are appointed
generally for a term of two years (or a term
as specified in the appointment letter).
Directors are not subject to re-election but
may be re-appointed by the shareholders.

BEBENERARARA - EFHER R
B2 (BHRBZERNANEEEH) - EF
BARERET  ERARRENZE -

These provisions are not applicable to the
Company. Pursuant to the Company's
Articles of Association, directors are
appointed by shareholders.

BUERENBERBNARTE - RIEARA]Z
(RAER) EFHBEREME-

These provisions are not applicable to the
Company since the Chairman and other
directors are appointed by the
shareholders.

BLRENERRARA  AXFEREME
EHHBRREE -

This provision is not applicable because all
of the Company's shares are beneficially
owned by the HKSAR Government and are
not publicly traded.

BIERETNERRARR  AARRMAR
MEYBREEFRBRARE L NMEARE

=
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B.1.2

C.3.5

ElltoE 14

&E2.1

36

Code Provisions

<F AR XL

The Remuneration Committee should make
recommendation to the Board on policy and

package for all remuneration of directors.

HEZE SR EEZT RN E I BIRE K

FERNEFRRLES -

This code provision deals with the reporting
requirement in the Corporate Governance
Report regarding different views between the
Board and the Audit Committee on external

auditors.
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EzEmBrRERR  EREERRE LK

HEKR o

proceedings for annual general meetings.
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These code provisions deal with the

Reason for Deviation

1 o IR

This provision is not applicable to the
Company because Board Members do not
receive any remuneration.

EEMETERNARGE  HEERKEL
AUERE AT o

This provision is not applicable to the
Company because there is no
disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee in this respect so far.

BEMRETERANRARR Fie5EE/NM
B RBGZHTBEETEFIAER -

These provisions are not applicable to the
Company as the Company is wholly owned
by the HKSAR Government via Financial
Secretary Incorporated and Resolutions in
Writing in lieu of annual general meetings is
adopted.
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Report of the Directors
ESRHRE

The directors submit herewith their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2016.

Principal activities

Details of the principal activities of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited (the “Company"”) are set out in
note 1 to the financial statements.

Recommended dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend.

Share capital
Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 24 to

the financial statements. There were no movements during the
year.

88 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
2015/16 Annual Report

EERREEREXBE2016F3A3LRAILEFE
ZEBRBEGHEHREK

FERK

EREEEEEAR AR ( ATERE [ARR]])
ZEBRBERFT %Zﬁf‘élﬁ“ﬂﬁﬁi\%wufl o

e o)
EERTRBRERBRS -

SN

AR ZBAFBEHR M RRME24 - FA

Report of the Directors
ESRHmE

Directors =
The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this REHREFEEANEEARFEHHIIEET ES
report were: U

Lee G. LAM (Chairman) (appointed on 5 June 2016)
MRE(EF)(R 201656 A5 BERMT)

Paul CHOW Man-yiu (Chairman) (ret|red on 4 June 2016)
BB (EE) (R 201646 B 4 HEME)

Philip CHAN Ching-ho
BRIF 5
Humphrey CHOI Chor-ching

Z ﬂZ/ﬁ

Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak

g ks
Edwin LEE Kan-hing
IR

Gabriel PANG Tsz-kit
LT

quglas SO Cheung-tak
BRETE

Alfred WONG Kwok-kuen
= B

Peter YAN King-shun
ERE

YEUNG Mei-chun
T’fz_%/

LAU Chun-kong (appointed on 5 June 2015)
2T (M 2015%F 6 A5 AEET)

CHEUK Wing-hing (appointed on 20 November 2015)
HokE (R 2015%F 11 A 20 HEZEE)

Duncan CHIU (appointed on 5 June 2016)
ERZER (R 201646 A5 HEZR)

HO Shuk-yee (resigned on 20 November 2015)
AR (R 20154 11 A 20 HEHE)

George HONGCHQY Kwok-lung (retired on 4 June 2015)
TEIZE (R 2015% 6 A4 HRME)

Elizabeth TSE Man-yee (resigned on 19 September 2016)
HEE(R2016F9 A 19 HEHE)

YEUNG Tak-bun (alternate director to HO Shuk-yee, appointed on 10 July 2015; resigned on 20 November
2015) éalternate director to CHEUK Wing-hing, appointed on 20 November 2015)

HEM(RE 2 BEESE - R2016F7A10BERME: R2015F 11 A20B#HE) (2 kE2BEESE - R
2015 11 A20 B EZF)

Joey LAM Kam-ping (alternate director to HO Shuk-yee, resigned on 10 July 2015)
MEBFE(TRE 2 BREES - K2015%F7 A 10 HEHE)

CHAN Mable&altemate director to Elizabeth TSE Man-yee, resigned on 1 August 2016)
E (2B zBEES M2016F8 ALHEHE)

Andrew LAI Chi-wah (alternate director to Elizabeth TSE Man-yee, appointed on 1 August 2016; resigned on 19
September 2016) -
REE(HERZETES > N2016F8 A1HEZMT  BR20164F9 A 19 HEHT)

BREISEEEGRAA
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Report of the Directors
ESRHRE

There being no provision in the Company's Articles of
Association in connection with the retirement of directors by
rotation, all existing directors continue in office for the following
year.

Directors’ interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

At no time during the year was the Company, its fellow
subsidiaries or its immediate holding company a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to
which the Company, its holding company or fellow subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management contracts

Save for the management agreement of Le Méridien Cyberport,
the facilities management agreement and the system operation
contract, no other contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

Permitted indemnity provision

During the year and up to the date of this Report of the
Directors, the permitted indemnity provision as defined in
section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance for the
benefit of the directors of the Company was in force. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
directors arising out of corporate activities.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

By order of the board
Lee G. LAM

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 September 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B 2R E

N

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”)
set out on pages 93 to 136, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2016, the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

R T

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2016
and of the Company's financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 September 2016
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Bm Kk HAEENER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z 20163 A31HIEFE

Revenue A

Other net income H it Ug A JH5E

5 447,537,112 437,752,796
5 20,675,215 30,910,149

Expenses before public mission R ABRFEWEHIEHR
activities expenses and EZXH
depreciation

Building management expenses MEEEX L
Staff costs B ITAA
Government rent and rates A & 2= £
Other operating expenses Hith & ET B
Finance costs MiEE R

468,212,327 468,662,945

(141,126,656) (135,024,276)

6 (86,792,068) (85,260,987)
9 (13,688,039) (12,895,369)

(74,333,535) (76,420,705)
11 (29,751) (28,190)

(315,970,049) (309,629,527)

Operating profit before public R DABREWEER I HR
mission activities expenses and HEZEERR
depreciation

Public mission activities expenses ~ AR{Eap A BT H

152,242,278 159,033,418

10 (82,659,716) (68,239,669)

Operating profit before RETITEZEEEF

depreciation 69,582,562 90,793,749
Depreciation e 13 (117,713,101) (148,376,683)
Loss before taxation MRBLATE B 11 (48,130,539) (57,582,934)
Income tax expense FrgBisZ i 12 - -
Loss and total comprehensive FRABERZERRAHE

income for the year

(48,130,539) (57,582,934)

The notes on pages 97 to 136 form part of these financial
statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z 20163 A31HIEFE

Statement of Financial Position
BF G AR 5=

As at 31 March 2016 201643 A31H

Accumulated

Share capital ~ Capital reserve losses Total equity
R BXfE RitEE EREH
Non-current assets FRBEE HKS HKS$ HKS
?R_ C;*Q_ H Iﬁ_
Property, plant and equipment ERY EY & 13 2,995513,860 3,086,109,792 o o L o
Deferred rental receivables i1 Aveikn 14,690,545 12,992,113 _
Investments in securities AR 14 559,202,194 655,001,734 Balance at1 Apl’l| 2014 R2014F 4 A1 B &gk 5,282,370,692 (1880188101) 3,402,182,593
3,569,406,599 3,754,103,639 . . . .
Currentassets UTUUUUSHREEE T Changes in equity for the year: ERERRE:
lFeifiares, ot aash LR A 450,650 483.024 Transfer from development E%ﬁf%ﬁ’ﬁlﬁfgﬁﬁ}ﬁfé
Trade and other receivables B U B 5% I L e MR K0 15 25,340,719 17,934,921 maintenance fund to capital reserve AT (7t 21)
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEUS R 2B A Rk A 16 1,892,385 1,824,347 (note 21) 9,790,279 - 9,790,279
Investments in securities HEHE 14 404,346,906 365,532,175 Transfer from facilities maintenance ~ MRIEAERSBHE
Cash and bank balances e RRITET 17 185,286,364 102,295,260 fund to capital reserve (note 22) NG ER) 10,391,226 - 10,391,226
617,317,024 488,069,727 Capital reserve arising on handover of BB X% - #E KRR 1E
Current liabilities REEE property, plant and equipment MEEZERGHE 177,410 - 177410
Loss and total comprehensiveincome  FREE &2 EE
Trade and other payables FEAHR SRS EL A P R 18 70,314,470 77,405,078 for the year ks - (57,582.934)  (57,582,934)
Rental and other deposits HekHEMmEe 19 77,001,592 74577479
Amount due to the immediate holding B E A BB Balance at 31 March 2015 and R201553A31AR
company 16 254,303,568 254.227.227 1 April 2015 205541048 5,302,729,607 (1,937,771,035) 3,364,958,574
Obligations under a finance lease REHEAE 20 2,086,322 2,077,328
- A03,705,952 408,287,112 Changes in equity for the year: FRRRED:
Net t i REEE] 213,611,072 79,782,615 .
e ggﬁ&gﬁ ------------------------------------------------------------------ Transfer from development MEREEESERE
Total assets less current liabilities ~ #: RERABAM 3783017671 3833886254 maintenance fund to capital reserve  EZRGEHS (Mt 21)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (note 21) 693,044 - 693,044
. \ Transfer from facilities maintenance  HREHEESBRZE
Development maintenance fund BREECES 21 422,214,986 422,908,030 : o
Facilities maintenance fund RIS ES 22 29,975,074 39,608,774 fund to capital reserve (n.ote.22) ééﬁfﬁ([;ﬁ&%) 9,633,700 - 9,633,700
Deferred income s 23 _ 651,721 Loss and total comprehensive income  FREE R 2B
Obligations under a finance lease REHEAE 20 3,672,832 5,759,155 for the year B - (48,130,539)  (48,130,539)
455862892468927680 Balance at 31 March 2016 W2016F3 A 31 A&k 5,313,056,351 (1,985,901,574) 3,327,154,779
NET ASSETS EERE 3,327,154,779 3,364,958 574
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E The notes on pages 97 to 136 form part of these financial S97ZE136 8 ZkiiF AR HEHREK 2 ARES °
Share capital % 24 2 2 SUELEES
Capital reserve BEREE 5,313,056,351  5,302,729,607
Accumulated losses 25TEE (1,985,901,574) (1,937,771,035)
TOTAL EQUITY Az 3,327,154,779 3,364,958 574

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

23 September 2016.
Lee G. LAM Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak
MR BHE
Director Director
0 0

The notes on pages 97 to 136 form part of these financial

statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

HEmER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE 2016 3 A31 HILFE

Cash flows from operating activities

REFHzRERE

Netcashgeneratedfromoperations ~ MEXBMEL REFE 25 38,967,894 53035354
Cash flows from investing activities = REFE2HLHRE
Purchase of property, plant and BAYE - BERF

equipment (30,831,766) (28,847,901)
Purchase of held-to-maturity BAZBRIHEKRE

investments - (238,994,996)
Purchase of investments at fair value BARAAEBEFAER

through profit or loss ZIE (88,601,324) (48,854,765)
Redemption of held-to-maturity BRBE2IHARKE

investments 63,094,475 202,000,000
Proceeds from sale and redemptionof ~ HE REEIR AR BETA

investments at fair value through BRZREMSHE

profit or loss 71,284,602 35,642,311
Interest income received from: BEUFIBIA
— Held-to-maturity investments —RBERIPARKE 20,819,001 20,885,930
— Investments at fair value through —RARBEHABSIRE

profit or loss 8,459,299 7,821,990

— Bank deposits — RITER 1,137,803 220,720
Net cash generated from/(used in) REBEFEE(FTH)
B ZReR® 45,362,090 EEGEE TR0
Cash flows from financing activities MK EEBZRERE
Increase/(decrease) inamountdueto BN EBEIERARZIA

the immediate holding company #m,/ Cfd) 76,341 (3.921)
Government grants received BERBFwESE 691,859 882,000
Capital element of finance lease ENRERERSEARITD

rentals paid (2,077,329) (1,552,120)
Interest element of finance lease ENREEERSMELD

rentals paid (29,751) (28,190)
Netcashusedin financing activities  MEEBAAZRE®HE  (1338880) (702,231)
Net increase in cash and cash BeRBRSEEBAEMFHE

equivalents 82,991,104 2,106,412
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHzReREEEEER

beginning of the year 102,295,260 100,188,848
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRZEGREASEEEHR

end of the year 17 185,286,364 102,295,260

The notes on pages 97 to 136 form part of these financial

statements.

9 6 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited

2015/16 Annual Report

FOTE16E M RARMIEIRER 2 EERD °

General information

The principal activity of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited (the “Company”) is to
support and promote innovation and technology
development in Hong Kong through the creation of a
creative digital cluster of information and
communications technology (“ICT") based companies.

With a vision to build a legacy of entrepreneurial
excellence that establishes Cyberport as a leading global
innovation and technology hub (the “Vision™), the public
missions of the Company are anchored on three strategic
directions namely Cyberport Youth, Cyberport
Entrepreneurs and Cyberport Partners. The Company
aims to inspire the next generation under Cyberport
Youth, nurture an entrepreneurial spirit under Cyberport
Entrepreneurs, and enable ICT-related companies to leap
on global ambition through Cyberport Partners. Under the
Company's relentless pursuit of excellence, the Company
takes a pragmatic and comprehensive approach in
realising its Vision. To ensure the line-up of services is
dynamic and flexible fitting the needs of budding tech
entrepreneurs or industry talents, the Company actively
builds strong partnerships with leaders from tech
industry, academia, research institutes and professional
bodies. The Company has established various teams
("Operating Teams") to achieve the above public mission.
The expenses incurred by the Operating Teams that
contribute to the successful running of the public mission
activities are disclosed in note 10.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is Units
1102-1104, Level 11, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road,
Hong Kong.

The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region ("HKSAR") via
Financial Secretary Incorporated.

These financial statements have been approved for issue
by the board of directors on 23 September 2016.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt iR R Mz

(a)

Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs™), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except where stated
otherwise in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Company's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Efi§ s R K&t

(b)
0)

(i)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Adoption of amendments and new standards

New and revised standards and amendments effective
for the year ended 31 March 2016

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Company. The adoption of these amendments to
HKFRSs has no material effect on the Company's results
and financial position for the current or prior periods.

Standards and amendments to existing standards that
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 March 2016 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which
may be relevant to the Company.

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning on or
after

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle

1 January 2016

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure
initiative

1 January 2016

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, 1 January 2016
Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with 1 January 2018
customers

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018

HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019

The Company is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new standards and amendments to
standards and is not yet in a position to state whether
they would have a significant impact on the Company’s
results and financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt iR R Mz

(c)

Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FE®FTBE@

(c) W% - HBERRE
WE - B RRERELRARZEAITE
MORE B BB L A BRI IE % F
BEERBIEZMAX

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Higmz EEMRBA KA  REAEAAR
NEE ARG E M et WHER] FEHET H
HIBEERAZIBRAT  TEREEEELZ
FREEXERSBLEE(RER) - A
Hip e RRERXINEEL 2 M
RIAR B M A2 E SR A

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

WK - Has RREZITERAE KRR
8 AARSEK AR E G Al A
BHFGREE AEFERARBZE

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful

lives. The principal annual rates in use are as follows: BEFERMAT -

Over the period
Buildings of the lease
e F R 4
Building services and support facilities 10%
TR EIRRE
Information technology facilities 20%
BB &R
Centres equipment 20%-33Y5%
G
Leasehold improvements 10%
HEMHRRIE
Furniture and equipment 10%-20%
BRAL 2 BB
Motor vehicles 20%
E il

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

& 7 2 TR A 520 4 5 R 5 2
RE - S R o

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note

2(f)).

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

MEEZEEAESREGMAZTRE S
2 BE ZREES AR Z ko &
2 (BHEE2() ©

HEWER - s MREMELE 2 Waa sl E
BALEMBSFIRFREABEE 2 RE
SHEMERZZRETE - WS REM
PEER AR o
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Company
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a
specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Company

Assets that are held by the Company under leases which
transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Company are
classified as operating leases.

(ii) Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Company acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value of
the leased asset, or, if lower, the present values of the
minimum lease payments, are included in property, plant
and equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost or valuation of the assets over the term
of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Company will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 2(c). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
2(f). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt iR R Mz

(d)
(iif)

(e)

0

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leased assets (continued)
Operating lease charges

Where the Company has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal installments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Investments in securities

The Company classifies its investments in securities in the
following categories: held-to-maturity and at fair value
through profit or loss. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the securities were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
investments in securities at initial recognition.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Company’'s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. They are
included in non-current assets, except for those with
maturities less than 12 months from the end of the
reporting period, which are classified as current assets.

Held-to-maturity investments are stated in the statement
of financial position at cost plus/less any discount/
premium amortised to date. The discount or premium is
amortised over the period to maturity and included as
interest income/expense in profit or loss. Provision is
made when there is a diminution in value other than
temporary.

The carrying amounts of individual held-to-maturity
investments or holdings of the same investments are
reviewed at the end of the reporting period in order to
assess the credit risk and whether the carrying amounts
are expected to be recovered. Provisions are made when
carrying amounts are not expected to be recovered and
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as expense immediately.
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(e)
(i)

(f)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in securities (continued)
Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in securities managed by external fund
managers are designated at fair value as they are
managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value
basis.

Investments in securities at fair value through profit or
loss are initially stated at fair value, which is their
transaction price unless it is determined that the fair value
at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and
that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability or based on a
valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as incurred. At the end of the
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The net
gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income does not include any
interest earned on these investments as these are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out in note

2(0)(vi).

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for indications of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. An impairment loss is recognised
in the profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset,
or of the cash generating unit to which it belongs, is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
assets. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

2

(e)
(i)

()

FESTHR@
BERE(H)
BRARBESABRE RS

HINERESKEEE ZEHFKRE - EAR
BAREBEERE HHRER  FitiEE
A EEIIEK -

RARBEFABRZEFREVNLRA
AEBEIER  IZEFRENZZER B
FVLTHARAKONAABEEINNRZE
% BAABETDAEREESBERE
BTIZHME @ SKARKAREAIERT
B8 2 METEARKE - EAEFRS
PSR EE R fE B 2 EAth 2 E I s &
BR - ARBENREHRRENE AT
EA 2 Wi B RN B R E M2 E RS
REPER - RBERKEM 2SR ER
ZFW BRI T BIER R EFRE MR
Bz ERFE - ABEBEFNETIRENT
2(0)(vii) Fr# 2 BUR HERR ©

BEERME

ME  EBLREZRAERSHRERAR
MABBRUNESHRENR - WHEBEEEZ
REEEMBCRSEEEVBBER
Wm e - ARERERBRER - —1R
BESHEMBREELEM 2 AIREEHE
RERREBERLEXNALEFEREERNE
BlzBmE - R HEAEER - 5K
KReMEBRARIARMKEAITISHER
B FTERT i 2 BRATHT IR R R B ERE
R IREHRE - HEFEEEAIKREE
B EABBEATABNERE - REE
1BANT R -

LR 102



Notes to the Financial Statements Bt iR R Mz

€y

(h)

()

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Government grants or sponsorship

A government grant or sponsorship is recognised at fair
value when there is reasonable assurance that the
Company will comply with the conditions attaching with it
and that the grant will be received.

Government grants and sponsorships relating to income
are deferred and recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income over the period
necessary to match them with the costs they are intended
to compensate.

Government grants and sponsorships relating to the
purchase of property, plant and equipment are credited
to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Inventories

Inventories, comprising food, beverage and operating
supplies, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs are calculated using the weighted average
costing method. Net realisable value is determined on the
basis of anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling
expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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(k)

(D

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, and highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

(m) Employee benefits

()

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iif)

(n)

Retirement scheme obligations

The Company operates a defined contribution retirement
scheme, the Mandatory Provident Fund, and pays
contributions to a publicly administered retirement
benefit plan on a mandatory basis. The Company has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as
a liability when the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled
within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the country where the
Company operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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(0)

()
(M

(i)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue and other income comprise the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale of
services in the ordinary course of the Company’s
activities. Revenue and other income are recognised as
follows:

(i) Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the terms of the lease. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

(i Management fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

(iii) Income from hotel operation is recognised upon
provision of services.

(iv) Car park fee and information technology facilities
income are recognised when the services are
rendered and the facilities are utilised.

(v) Income from leasing of centre facilities is recognised
when the facilities are utilised.

(vi) Other incidental income and services income are
recognised when the Company is entitled to the
income and the services are rendered.

(vii) Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis, using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company
are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (the
“functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.
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(a)

(a)

10

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Company. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, the matter will then be recognised as a
provision.

Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities are exposed to a variety of
financial risks: interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk
and currency risk. The Company's overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects of these risks on the Company's financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Company's
management under policies approved by the Board. The
Company's management identifies, evaluates and
manages significant financial risks in the Company's
business units. The Board provides guidance for overall
risk management.

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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(a)
()

(i)

Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest
rates will impact the earnings of the Company. The
Company’s major interest-bearing assets comprise bank
deposits and held-to-maturity investments (collectively
“interest-bearing assets”) and are primarily issued at
fixed rates which therefore do not expose the Company to
cash flow interest rate risk.

The Company has no significant borrowings other than
the non interest-bearing advance from the immediate
holding company.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential failure of the
Company's counterparties to meet their obligations under
financial contracts. The Company is exposed to credit risk
on cash and bank balances, investments in securities, as
well as trade and other receivables.

The Company's bank deposits are deposited with banks
of high credit quality in Hong Kong to minimise the credit
exposure.

For investments in securities, the Company adopts a
prudent policy to invest in securities only with very strong
investment-grade credit ratings and limit exposure to any
single investment. The exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.
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(a)
(i)

(iii)

Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

For rent receivable from tenants, credit checks are part of
the normal leasing process and stringent monitoring
procedures are in place to deal with overdue debts. In
addition, the Company reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual balance outstanding at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate provision for
impairment losses is made for irrecoverable amounts.
The Company normally receives rents in advance from
tenants on a monthly basis and also has policies in place
to obtain rental deposits or bank guarantees from tenants
prior to commencement of leases.

For other trade receivables, the exposure to these credit
risks is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These receivables are due ranging from
30 to 60 days from the date of billing. Normally, the
Company does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Company has no significant concentrations of credit
risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is unable to
meet its current obligations when they fall due. Prudent
liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient
cash and the availability of funding through operating
cash flows and advance from the immediate holding
company.

The Company's policy is to regularly monitor its current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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(@)
(iii)

Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Company's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

At 31 March 2016 A2016F3 A31H
Trade and other payables JE AT BR R e L Ath P <) 3KIB
Rental and other deposits e kHEMZS

Amount due to the immediate FEfTE IR A F)

Less than

—FRT  —EZmE

BRREAREEREMIAEZAR
BE{E @

Bt 75 L B R 3% (40)

REE S mE (8

TRARRAR M BRBERBERRES
#BIHR Bz &R B 2 A8 BE B B A Bl o
e ERABBZEBA/BHNRFTRZHE

A=
ETLE °

Between More than
lyear 1and 2 years 2 years

M E

HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT

70,314,470 - -
34,424,802 16,991,792 25,584,998

holding company KB 254,303,568 - -
Finance lease liabilities MEHEEE 2,107,080 2,107,080 1,580,310
At 31 March 2015 MA2015F3 A31H
Trade and other payables FEfTER R R HAbERI 5k 77,405,078 - -
Rental and other deposits MHekEMize 28,167,432 25,920,186 20,489,861
Amount due to the immediate FEfT BE#EZIZRA A

holding company IR 254,277,277 - -
Finance lease liabilities BEHERE 2,107,080 2,107,080 3,687,390
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(a)
(iv)

Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Currency risk

The Company's functional currency is Hong Kong dollars.
The Company is exposed to currency risk primarily
through investment in securities that are denominated in
other currencies, being primarily United States dollars
("USD™) and Renminbi (“RMB"). As the Hong Kong dollars
is pegged to the USD, the Company considers the risk of
movements in exchange rates between the Hong Kong
dollars and the USD to be insignificant.

In respect of balances denominated in RMB, the Company
ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable
level by adjusting the level of RMB denominated
investments.

As at 31 March 2016, investment in securities
denominated in RMB amounting to HK$101.1 million
(2015: HK$173.5 million). Management estimated that a
5% appreciation/depreciation of RMB against Hong Kong
dollars would have decreased/increased the Company's
loss for the year and increased/decreased total equity by
HK$5.1 million (2015: HK$8.7 million). The sensitivity
analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments which expose the Company to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is performed on the same basis as 2015.
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(b)
0)

Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

Fair values measurement
Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

The Company's investments in securities at fair value
through profit or loss are measured using market quoted
prices and therefore fall within the Level 1 fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13.

Fair value hierarchy

The level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

J Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

. Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

J Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Company's policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt iR R Mz

(b)
(i)

(c)

Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

Fair values measurement (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March
2015 and 2016 except for the held-to-maturity
investments, for which their fair values at 31 March 2016
totalled HK$650,355,391 (2015: HK$721,203,304),
compared to their carrying amount of HK$647,261,433
(2015: HK$718,192,926). The fair values are measured
using market quoted prices and therefore fall within the
Level 1 fair value hierarchy.

Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The
Company's strategy remains unchanged for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

Management reviews the capital structure periodically
and manages its overall capital structure if necessary. As
at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Company was in a net
cash position.

114 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited

2015/16 Annual Report

3

(b)
(i)

(c)

RRARIEKAKEHEK AR Z £ 5
TAZREESEER2015F %2016 F
3ABIBZAREBAEYTEEREZE

HMN2016E3A31B 2 AR BHEALA
650,355,391 # 7T, (2015 4F : 721,203,304
BEIr) MEEmEER) A6472614337%8 T
(20154 : 718,192,926/ L) * MHEHEAE
FHAZRERI - ZEARBERATS
WENE  BWBRE—RAABESH -

EXEBER

ARAZERERBBRAREARR TR
BEBZH ARG RE MmN AEM
FESRNE - WHERREBZ BARE
B ARMADERKA - BE201653 A

EEETHRNEAGER  LHELERS
BEHEARENER - ARA|R 20165 M
20154 3 A 31 BHENIRE FH MM ©

Notes to the Financial Statements Efi§ s R K&t

(a)

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
effect on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are
discussed below:

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company performs review for impairment of non-
financial assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets may not be recoverable.

The Company reviews certain indicators of potential
impairment of these assets such as reported sales and
purchase prices, market demand and general market
conditions. The Company considers “Buildings held for
rental”, “Hotel building” and “Building services and
support facilities” as a portfolio of assets and identifies
the cash-generating unit to which the portfolio of assets
belongs by referring to the valuation performed by
independent external valuers, after taking into
consideration the net income allowing for reversionary
potential. The assumptions adopted in the property
valuation are based on the market conditions existing at
the end of the reporting period, with reference to current
market sales prices and the appropriate capitalisation
rate.

Based on the Company's best estimates, no provision for
impairment loss on the non- financial assets is necessary.

(a)

BARE 4R R A

BT R A TR BB E &R M A A =
BETAE - HUEXBRAEMRBBLT
BRKEMH2AETER -

ARBFLARKAE L A RRF - BEE
& PESFHEF RO SEEBERERA
Rl - WEHEEMBERAEBEBEZEERT
B AT EKRERmlnT

FEMEEZRE
BELRBREEZREBEREKDZIE

EZREETER -

RRBIERA 2 F B ERLEE ZBED
RMHEZEEER  mHEBFRE K
MR » AR FELEET ] DB
BT | K TR MSURRE] R —
BEEEAS @ WA RBAFRRERE
N&2ZJIIMNEGERM 2 GE - BEZ
BEHAAMBZHRSELEM - WERME
FER A 2 BRER AR & AR 2 TR R K& -
W2EERZTHEKRREREBEENEL

RBARRE 2 &EMT - BALFEEHE
EZREBEELRE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt iR R Mz

(b)

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

Investments in securities

The Company follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on initial
classification of non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-
maturity if the Company has the intention and ability to
hold such investments to maturity; or at fair value through
profit or loss if the investments are managed by an
external fund manager and their performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, and information about the
investments is provided internally on that basis to the
Company's key management.

For held-to-maturity investments, the Company evaluates
its intention and ability to hold such investments to
maturity. If the Company fails to keep these investments
to maturity other than for specific circumstances — for
example, selling an insignificant amount close to maturity
— it will be required to reclassify the entire class as
available-for-sale. The investments would, therefore, be
measured at fair value not at amortised cost.

For investments designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, the Company engages an external fund manager
to manage the investment portfolio which is evaluated
and reported internally on a fair value basis. Accordingly,
these investments are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss and are stated at fair value with subsequent
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Efi§ s R K&t

(c)

(d)

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Management determines the provision for impairment of
trade and other receivables based on the credit history or
the financial position of its customers and the current
market conditions. Management will assess the adequacy
of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
at the end of each reporting period and significant level of
judgement is required in determining the adequacy of
such provision.

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business.

The Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the year in which such determination is
made.

Recognition of deferred tax asset, which principally relates
to tax losses of the Company, depends on the
management'’s expectation of future taxable profits that
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

(©)

(d)

AR E A e & i (@)

FE Wk RR SRR % EL At FE W R 0E 2 BB

ERERBEEELSLET, 2R
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Revenue and other net income 5 WAHEEMWAFEEE

Revenue and other net income recognised during the year
are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt #3R Mz

FRBAEE ML AFEERERT

Revenue 'ON
Rental income HE WA 210,588,164 196,404,413
Building management income MEEREA
» Management fee income - BEEEWA 84,256,008 82,541,738
- Car park fee income - EESRA 11,736,728 10,646,259
« Other facilities income « HAhERiEW A 20,973,213 || 21,141,387
116,965,949 114,329,384
Income from hotel operation B JE & E WA 119,421,577 126,468,735
Information technology facilities income & s RHE R HEUW A 481,439 481,439
Other incidental income H IR A 79,983 68,825
447,537,112 437,752,796
Other net income H g A F5E
Interest income from held-to-maturity #AZEZ|HEARKEBEBE A EWA -
investments, net of amortisation of M= EEHFE
premium of HK$4,213,416 4,213,416
(2015: HK$5,936,683) (20154 : 5,936,683/ 7T) 16,502,660 16,271,226
Interestincome from investments at AR BEFARBIEZ
fair value through profit or loss TEFEBA 8,603,452 8,111,601
Interest income on bank deposits RITFRFEHA 1,142,171 217,217
Services income from fellow CES =N N
subsidiaries (Note) (F3E) 4,201,654 4,201,654
Net realised/unrealised (losses)/gains & AR BETAEZRZ
oninvestments at fair value through ~ #&& 2 B #38 KREIH
profit or loss (EB18), /W /F 58 (3,370,038) 2,108 451
Net foreign exchange loss SNEE BT 1855 (6,800,537) -
Sundry income FEIEWA 395,853 -
20,675,215 30,910,149
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5 Revenue and other net income (continued) 5

Note: On 24 May 2000, a portion of the Inland Lot No.8969 at Telegraph
Bay, Pokfulam (“Residential Portion™) was assigned to Hong Kong
Cyberport (Ancillary Development) Limited (*“HKCAD"), a fellow
subsidiary, by Hong Kong Cyberport Development Holdings
Limited (“the immediate holding company”). Pursuant to the
services agreement dated 25 October 2003 entered into between
the Company and HKCAD, a fixed monthly services income of
HK$125,600 was received from HKCAD commencing from
November 2003 for the provision of services by the Company to
facilitate the operation of the Residential Portion. The fee was
revised to HK$200,000 commencing from April 2006 and to
HK$261,000 commencing from May 2008. Total amount received
during the year was HK$3,132,000 (2015: HK$3,132,000).

Pursuant to the services agreement dated 12 March 2005 entered
into between the Company and Skillful Limited, a fellow subsidiary,
a monthly services income was received for the provision of
information technology and telecommunications services to the
Residential Portion. Total amount received during the year was
HK$1,069,654 (2015: HK$1,069,654).

6 Staff costs 6

W A B2 H At Ut AR FE (1)

MizE : A 200045 A24 B » HB BB RRERE
RARN([EEZERARDRARAZNBARE
PEEIG S (HEERE) AR A A (THKCAD]) it
HSE RN 47 2 At ER 8969 SR B — 380 -
#([EEZHH]) o RIE20034F10 A 25 B &
ARIEHKCAD £ 5] 2 R Ha% + AR RBE
Ehn 2z EBMRERL - 52003411 A
4% A A HKCAD Y B 125,600 7 7t 2 & £ AR
WA » R 20064 4 A 12008 F 5 A#E « 1t
1B Ik & 5 Bl & 5] & & A 200,000 T
261,000 7T - A4 [E B U488 A& 3,132,000
# 7T (20154 : 3,132,000 7T) °

RIF2005F3 A 12 HARREBERRBA
7] Skillful Limited 28 3] Z IR % s + AN A A3t
FEBHREEMRHE R EMNRSE S B UERAR
A o NFE B U HEEE AH1,069,6547% T
(20154 : 1,069,654787T) °

BITRA

Salaries and allowances g BERL 91,558,818 89,840,342
Unutilised annual leave AZHFR 1,641,257 2,080,880
Contributions to Mandatory SR AES R
Provident Fund 4,328,642 4157 059
Staff benefits and other staff costs BTEM&EME TR 951,689 979,913
98,480,406 97,058,194
Analysed into: palib= I
Hotel B S 53,934,639 52,109,012
Corporate office RNAEPHER 32,857,429 33,151,975
86,792,068 85,260,987
Operating Teams (note 10) ZBE X (FIEE 10) 11,688,338 11,797,207
98,480,406 97,058,194
BREGEEERARLT
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt #3R Mz

7 Directors’ emoluments 7

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

EEME

RIBRE R RMEDIE 383(1) R 2 A (]
BEFENZEMRIIE2HMEECES
B

Directors' fees EEHe

Salaries, allowances and e RUMREYEA
benefits in kind
Discretionary bonuses Y IBIEAT

Retirement scheme contributions RORETEIE IR

8 Five highest paid individuals 8

The emoluments payable to the five individuals whose
emoluments were the highest in the Company during the

AuHMES 2 AL

REFNAATAEHMES 2 A LS
m -

year are as follows:

Salaries and allowances
Contributions to Mandatory
Provident Fund

Fr EFRE
SR BIE DR E K

11,537,768 11,353,334

180,000 175,000

11,717,768 11,528,334

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

BRFMcsEENT

2016 2015

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 1,500,000 % 7T 1 =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 &7 2,000,000 % 7T 2 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 &% 2,500,000% 7T - -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 %7 3,000,000% 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 &% 3,500,000% 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 &% 4,000,000 % 7T 1 =

5 5
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10

Government rent and rates

O HiEKREM

Hotel B

Other Cyberport Portion IS EMEH

1,574,034 1,398,600
12,114,005 11,496,769

Operating Teams (note 10)

2EEK (R 10)

13,688,039 12,895,369
446,880 414,750

14,134,919 13,310,119

Public mission activities expenses

All direct and indirect expenses incurred for the primary
and dominant purpose of public mission and that
contribute to the successful running of public mission
activities as described in note 1 are considered as public
mission activities expenses. Such expenses comprise:

10 AREWFEL

SRR A = 2 B A M MY R 1AT A A T &R
WAREMBDRBEZ B ERE RHE
XHBERA/SRRERESD T - BREX
HEE

Staff costs B TR 11,688,338 11,797,207
Information technology facilities AR RBREER

maintenance fees 27,328,963 22,586,236
Financial assistance to industry MAAIDEIR A E B

start-ups 15,585,096 11,489,780
Programme expenses (seminars, BB X (A ate - 530

trainings, competitions, HE - TEHRERE)

workshops and exhibitions) 24,450,620 22,598,805
Government rent and rates HhAE K2 2= £ 446,880 414,750
Public mission communications N 2,637,354 617,089
Operating expenses REXH 7,501,721 8,079,840
Recovery of direct expenses (including  YEl 2 B 1 (BIEBAT

government grants of HK$1,572,510  #Bi€ 1,572,51087T

(2015: HK$289,839)) (20154 : 289,839/%7L)) (6,979,256) (9,344,038)

82,659,716 68,239,669
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt #3R Mz

11 Loss before taxation

Loss before taxation is stated after crediting and charging

the following:

11 BRBiIRIER
BB AIAAE st ARG THIER -

Crediting:

Rental income less outgoings of
HK$12,114,005 (2015:
HK$11,496,769)

Reversal of provision for impairment

25t AER :

M E W AR

12,114,005% 7T

(2015% : 11,496,76987T) 198,474,159 184,907,644
JFE M B 35 1 18 1 [ 3¢

of receivables - 562,464
Charging: EHRER :
Cost of inventories BEEKAR 15,599,794 15,315,919
Auditor's remuneration %2R RN BN & 430,600 418,000
Provision for impairment of receivables J&Us BE ZOR{E B 5 10,685 682,916
Loss on disposals of property, HEYE - WEREEZ

plant and equipment, net BB 161,442 77,441
Finance costs: MBEA -

Finance charges on obligations BEMERECMBX L

under a finance lease 29,751 28,190

12 Income tax expense

12 FreBix

(a) No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the (a) AN RIANEE E & EEREHH - Bt

Company has no assessable profits for the year (2015:

Nil).

I & Bt & & K 15 Bt 1F 8 5 (20154 -
&) -

(b) The tax on the Company's loss before taxation differs  (b) AARIKRBIATER 2 FHIBHEEAEEER

from the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax

rate of Hong Kong as follows:

MEFAEZEmRBIZRWT

Loss before taxation

B B Bl 5 18

12

(48,130,539)

(57,582,934)

RIME16.5% (20154 :

Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5%

(2015: 16.5%) 16.5%) st & 2 1A (7,941,539)
Income not subject to tax HERDZ U (299,555)
Tax losses not recognised RER 2 BHIBEE 8,241,094

(9,501,184)
(36,000)
9,537,184

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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12
(c)

(d)

Income tax expense (continued)
Deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised

The movements of deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities
during the year are as follows:

12 P8 dH @)
(c) BRRZELFEH(EE) AE

BIEFTSH (BE) AERFRZEEHN
I

Depreciation
allowance in
excess of
related
depreciation

BiHAER

Taxlosses HEZIE Others

Deferred income tax arising from: EZEFTESHRE :

HERR RHE Hite

HK$ HK$ HK$
B BT BT

At 1 April2014 MN2014%F4A1H (50,662,545) 51,466,077 (803,532) =
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss R 1E2EA (5FA), /0K (13,340,843) 12,771.883 568,960 -
At 31 March 2015 R2015F3A31H (64,003,388) 64,237,960 (234,572) =
At 1 April 2015 R2015F4A1H (64,003,388) 64,237,960 (234,572) -
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss R85 A (5FA), /%K (15,317,908) 15,208,574 109,334 -
At 31 March 2016 MN2016%F3 A31H (79,321,296) 79,446,534 (125,238) =

Deferred income tax assets are not recognised for
remaining temporary differences arising from tax losses
carried forward due to uncertainty of realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits. As at
31 March 2016, the Company has unrecognised tax losses
of HK$2,022 million (2015: HK$1,973 million). The tax
losses have no expiry date and are yet to be agreed by the
Inland Revenue Department.

(d) AREEMETEREDEBARRER G
HAARNIAMN e - MASURFHIAE BT
EEZHRERZRBRELCHERE
BB ZE2016F3H3IB  ARABIHEER
AT HERZHIARBE20.22EE (2015
F 19738 T) - HBABBILER -
BARFREBHER -

ERERBEEARQA
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13 Property, plant and equipment

13 % - BBERRHE

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt #3R Mz

Building
Buildings services and Information Centres Furniture
held for Hotel support technology equipment Leasehold and Motor
rental building facilities facilities (Note (jii)) improvements equipment vehicles
BAEELE |: £33 B R HEN
2 =2 i) £ XERIE RiE (GEA)] BRIB BRERE L]
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Cost R&
At 1 April 2015 W2015F4A18  3,557,123,776 274937912 1159978681 235556454 60,886,254 75485808 150,109,754 1,018,019 5515,096,658
Additions HE - - 13,998,590 693,044 - 5,033,097 7,581,880 - 27,306,611
Disposals HE - - - - - - (857,088) - (857,088)
At31March 2016 R2016%3A318 3,557,123,776 274937912 1173977271 236,249,498 60,886,254 80,518,905 156,834,546 1,018,019 5541,546,181
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z3HE
At 1 April 2015 #2015%4A1H 846,565,460 65508674 1149969676 221561857 60886254 19,695,776 63,853,689 945,480 2,428,986,866
Charge for the year FRTE 77,142,966 5,955,334 1,471,859 5,079,953 - 7,372,188 20,640,276 50,525 117,713,101
Written back on disposals R ERRE - - - - - - (667,646) - (667,646)
At 31 March 2016 W2016%3A31H 923708426 71464008 1151441535 226,641,810 60,886,254 27,067,964 83,826,319 996,005 2,546,032,321
Net book value REEE
At31March 2016 M201653A318 2,633,415350 203473904 22,535,736 9,607,688 - 53450941 73,008,227 22,014 2,995,513,860

held fc
rental

RAELA

Hotel

building

BEET

Leasehold

equipment

Cost B&

At 1 April 2014 W2014F4A18  3557,123776 274937912 1149587455 235210482 60,886,254 49618349 129,737,277 1,018,019 5,458,119,524
Additions HE = = 10,391,226 401,676 = 25,867,459 21,735,984 = 58,396,345
Disposals HE = = = (55,704) = = (1,363,507) = (1,419.211)
At 31 March 2015 W2015F3A318  3557,123776 274937912 1159978681 235556454 60,886,254 75485808 150,109,754 1,018,019 5,515,096,658
Accumulated depreciation Rt 7%

At 1 April 2014 #201454A18 769,422,494 59,553,340 1,114916,005 216,515,901 60,833,430 13,958 849 45,928,455 823479 2281951,953
Charge for the year FRNE 77,142,966 5,955,334 35,053,671 5,101,660 52,824 5,736,927 19,211,300 122,001 148,376,683
Writtenback ondisposals ~ EHERE = - - (55,704) - - (1,286,066) - (1,341,770)
At 31 March 2015 R2015F3A318 846565460 65508674 1149969676 221,561,857 60,886,254 19,695,776 63,853,689 945480 2,428986,866
Net book value REFE

At 31 March 2015 W2015F3A318 2710558316 209,429,238 10,009,005 13,994,597 = 55,790,032 86,256,065 72539 3,086,109,792
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Notes:

)

(i)

(iii)

(V)

)

13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

On 22 May 2000, the Government of the HKSAR granted the
Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam to the immediate
holding company for a term of 50 years at a lump sum initial
premium of HK$1,000.

On 24 May 2000, the Company entered into a sub-lease
agreement (“Sub-lease Agreement”) with the immediate holding
company whereby a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at
Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam (“Cyberport Portion") is sub-leased to
the Company from the immediate holding company at nil rental.

The buildings are situated in Hong Kong and held on a sub-lease
from the immediate holding company for a term of 50 years less
the last 3 days thereof commencing from 22 May 2000.

Centres equipment represents equipment of Entrepreneurship
Centre and Technology Centre funded by government grant and
used for the purpose of the designated projects.

As at 31 March 2016, the fair value of the buildings held for rental
(together with the associated building services and support
facilities) amounted to HK$6,492 million (2015: HK$6,356 million).
The aggregate carrying value of such assets amounted to
HK$2,656 million (2015: HK$2,721 million). The fair value of the
buildings held for rental (together with the associated buildings
services and support facilities) as at 31 March 2016 was
determined based on a valuation carried out by Colliers
International (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent professional
valuer.

The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the
associated building services and support facilities) falls within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and is determined using the
income capitalisation approach by discounting the expected rental
income using capitalisation rate adjusted for the quality and
location of the buildings.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, additions to furniture and
equipment of the Company financed by a new finance lease were
HK$9.4 million. This represented a non- cash transaction. At the
end of the reporting period, the net book value of furniture and
equipment held under finance lease of the Company was HK$6.1
million (2015: HK$8.0 million).

f

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

()

13 ¥ - MBREHE @

R20005 822 H - BRRERN W EZE
B 22 B4t H — 08 2 7058 R AR B 4R 08 A 3t BR
8969 5% 2 £, - — IR 1M £ 3% (B /1,000 %8
7T EAHR504F -

7200045 A 24 R - ARRIEBEEEZERAA
#rl— oA ((H8HED - RiEEZSE
hag © AR BERERIZRA B D EBRME R
72 MIER 8969 5t A — R D 1t ([ BB 78
D1 ARAEEAZNEE

BUEBFURER  REERERARMHZ
DEBLHFA - DHEHA KRB 200065 H22H
REET 50 FRRIL 3K ©

LR R T B & & B I MRS E TR B
Z R OMBHR T L Z 8

M20164F3 A 31lE  HHEMELHENEFHA
AEBECERBENEF RS EIRRE) B
64.92 878 7T (20154F : 6356 B TT) ° &Lt
BEZBIREE /265618 % (20154 :
2721188 TT) - ZERFAEHEZ BT CER
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bt #3R Mz

14

(a)

14 BHERE

Investments in securities

Non-current assets ERBEE

Held-to-maturity investments (note a) #HAEZZHRKLE (MEa) 559,202,194 655,001,734

Current assets RBEE
Held-to-maturity investments (note a) #HEZE|HHKXE (Kiita) 88,059,239 63,191,192
Investments at fair value through BARBEFABRZRE

profit or loss (note b) (HI3EDb) 316,287,667 302,340,983

404,346,906 365,532,175

963,549,100 1,020,533,909

Held-to-maturity investments (a) BEEZIPARKRE

Listed fixed interest debt securities in =~ &8 T EE R EEKEH

Hong Kong 600,607,945 670,521,621
Unlisted debt securities FLEMEBES 46,653,488 47,671,305
Net book amount BREFE 647,261,433 718,192,926
The net book amount is analysed as BREFESFAT :

follows:

Maturing over one year M —5 LA 31 81 559,202,194 655,001,734
Maturing within one year R—FRE|H 88,059,239 63,191,192

647,261,433 718,192,926

Market value of listed debt securities &R #E S 2 A
Market value of unlisted but quoted ~ FELTEAREBEEES
debt securities Z A 46,611,452 47,397,900

603,743,939 673,805,404

650,355,391 721,203,304

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt #8 R Kz

14 Investments in securities (continued)

(a) Held-to-maturity investments (continued)

The held-to-maturity investments represent bonds with
maturities ranging from 3 to 43 months (2015: 1 to 54
months) and are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, USD
and RMB. The market values of listed and unlisted but
quoted debt securities classified as held-to-maturity are
based upon the market price of the debt securities quoted
over-the-counter. The maximum exposure to credit risk
at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount
of held-to-maturity investments.

The Company has not reclassified any financial assets
measured at amortised cost during the year (2015: Nil).

(b) Investments at fair value through profit or loss

14 FBHFRKRE @

(a) FEZIWERE @

FAEZIMAKRERNABT ETRAR
KRBz ES  HEHBEH3IEA3EA
RZE(2015%F : 125418 H) - DERKEH
EFHAZ LW EHEEREBRE
HFZMENRERREFGINZH 2 HRER
A - RIERRFEZEREERRZ
FAEZFHRKE 2fRHEE -

FARRARYL EAR IR B AT ELZ
TREEENFEHE(20156F « &) -

(b) BAARBESARZEZRE

Listed fixed interest debt securities:  _FHEFEF EEKES ¢

« In Hong Kong « BBRA
« Outside Hong Kong - BBEIN

Unlisted but quoted fixed interest FEMEBRERENEES
debt securities Feks:

83,203,222 4,849,603
220,538,753 290,090,949

12,545,692 7,400,431

316,287,667 302,340,983

15 Trade and other receivables

15 iR R H W R IR

Trade receivables JrE U BR 3R

Less: Provision for impairment of

5,428,888 6,502,766

B AR FUR E R E
receivables (note 15(d)) (FzE 15(d))

(759,021) (1,421,649)

Trade receivables — net JE U BR Sk — R

4,669,867 5081117

Prepayments, deposits and other

BNFIR - REeM

receivables H b f UG TR IE 20,670,852

12,853,804

25,340,719

17,934,921

12 6 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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All prepayments, deposits and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses by
the Company within one year, except for the amount of
HK$1,640,514 (2015: HK$1,550,073) which is expected to
be recovered after one year.

BR T 784,640 514787 (20154 : 1,550,073
BT Z FIRTERTR —FRIESN - NAT]
PRETAN IR - #2& M H KR FIATE
AR —F AW E SRR R
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15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

128

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values and are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

The credit terms given to the customers range from
0-30 days.

As at 31 March 2016, trade receivables of
HK$3,353,041 (2015: HK$3,080,121) were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default. The aging analysis of these trade
receivables and net of provision for impairment is as
follows:

15 FEWERI K H it FE W FIE (@)

(a)

(b)

(c)

P Ui AR K e EL A B MR IE 2 BRI (E
BEERAREERE  LABTR
B o

RTEFPZEEHROEI0K -

7201653 A31H - AR
3,353,041 7T (20154 : 3,080,121
BIT) B BHVEY ERE - ZFERIA
W I E T RN B8 KORC 8k 2 BN
BF - ZERYEERSR M EMRRE
BB RE DT

Neitherpastduenorimpaired _ R@M@sE 1316826 2000996
Less than one month past due BELR 1A A 2,815,813 2,724,597
One to three months past due wmE1-31@A 424,668 321,625
Over three months past due B EA 3ME A A 112,560 33,899
______________________________________________________________________________ 3,353,041 = 3080121
4,669,867 5,081,117

The Company has assessed if there is any
impairment on an individual customer basis based
on aging analysis of trade receivables balance,
historical bad debt rates, repayment patterns,
customer credit worthiness and industry trend
analysis. As at 31 March 2016, the amount of the
provision for impairment of trade receivables was
HK$759,021 (2015: HK$1,421,649).

Movements on the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

R BRI FE W AR SR A R 2 BR e
i BEERER BRI BPE
EROTEBEONANEREE
RlEFHIRE - R20164F3 A 31
B EURRZRERE & 759,021
P (2015 4F : 1,421,649 7T) °

FEM R FORE Rt < BV RSN T

At the beginning of the year F4] 1,421,649 4,869,891
Impairment loss recognised MR EE 18 10,685 682,916
Impairment loss written back RO E B 1B AR E) A IR - (562,464)
Uncollectible amounts written off  sE 857~ AT Ug B R IE (673,313)  (3,568,694)
At the end of the year FR 759,021 1,421,649

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
2015/16 Annual Report
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15 Trade and other receivables (continued)

16

17

18

(e) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of

the reporting period is the fair value of each class of
trade and other receivables mentioned above. The
Company does not hold any collateral as security
other than rental deposits and guarantees from

FE Ui BR FX &% E 1t FE W FRIE ()
() MBEHE  AENSSEER

G A b 2t 2% KR P M B R % EL b LR
REZRREE ARELERFH
B SR RERINZEAEM R
TEIRAE o

tenants.

Balances with group companies 16 KEARIZER

Balances with group companies are unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand. The amounts approximate
their fair values and are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

SERB 2 ERRAEER - 2R NARE
HMEE  ZEFHEBEQAREERSE X
AABTTREL »

<

Cash and bank balances 17 BERBITERF

Cash at bank and in hand RITEFLRFEES 147,444,907 74,058,742
Bank deposits with maturity under AR 38 A A EIE 2

three months at acquisition RITFRK 37,841,457 28,236,518
Cash and bank balances Me RIBITETT 185,286,364 102,295,260

RBe MRTEFZREERE AL EEN
% WABTREN -

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances
approximate their fair values and are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

Trade and other payables 18 ERMRHMEMFRIE

Trade payables JE AR 3K 45,693,220 48,498,298
Other payables and accruals HEMENZTIERENERA 24,621,250 28,906,780
70,314,470 77,405,078

FEN R R H N IR 2 BREEEE R
AEERE - WLABTTREN -

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables
approximate their fair values and are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.
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19

20

21

13

Rental and other deposits

Included in rental deposits are amounts of
HK$42,576,790 (2015: HK$46,410,047) which are not
expected to be settled within one year.

Obligations under a finance lease

At 31 March 2016, the Company had obligations under a
finance lease repayable as follows:

19

20

Present

HekHEfMRE

AR BRBBTER - FRNENZR
1042,576,7907 JT(20154F : 46,410,047
BIL) -

AERERE

R2016 3 A31H » AR AR EHE &
2 BHRIBT

2016 2015
Present

value of the Total value of the Total

Within 1 year 15R

1 FRE2FA
2FERESEFENR

After 1 year but within 2 years
After 2 years but within 5 years

minimum

minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments
REHE
NRRE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT

payments

RIEHEE
RBE

payments
REMEE

NHBE

payments
REEE

R E

2,086,322 2,107,080 2,077,328 2,107,080

2,095,355 2,107,080 2,086,322 2,107,080
1,577,477 1,580,310 3,672,833 3,687,390

3,672,832 3,687,390 5,759,155 5,794,470

5,759,154 5,794,470 7,836,483 7,901,550

W REH B X AR

Less: total future interest

expenses (35,316) (65,067)
Present value of lease obligations T E&ERE 5,759,154 7,836,483
Development maintenance fund 21 BR#BES

It represents a fund received by the Company in
accordance with the terms of a project agreement entered
into among the Company, the immediate holding
company, HKCAD, Pacific Century Cyberworks Limited
(now renamed as PCCW Limited) and Cyber-Port Limited
on 17 May 2000 (the “Project Agreement”). Pursuant to
the Project Agreement, the purpose of the fund is for
upkeep and maintenance of the common
telecommunications, media and information technology
facilities available to the tenants and visitors (the “Shared
Cyberport facilities™).

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
2015/16 Annual Report

ZAETRRBREHARE  ERERA
A HKCAD - BRl& i E h AR AR (3R
HMEARMBR LR MEMEBR AR
R2000F5 A 17 B ET 2 8iis B 1 &
e ([ 5+ B35k |) Z IRFRPTUCE 2 2 5K
I8 o RIBZE I - ZRES IAER
BRgEEHEREPMSEER LA
Bl - KEBMERREERE ([ BB BB
&) o

Notes to the Financial Statements Efi§ s R K&t

21

22

Development maintenance fund (continued)

Upon acquisition of relevant assets for replacements, the
costs of the acquired assets will be transferred from the
Development Maintenance Fund ("DMF") account to the
Capital Reserve account in accordance with the
Company's accounting policy.

During the year, Shared Cyberport facilities of
HK$693,044 (2015: HK$9,790,279) were acquired and
funded by the DMF. Accordingly, this amount has been
transferred from the DMF to Capital Reserve account.

Facilities maintenance fund

On 5 September 2006, the Company, HKCAD, and the
immediate holding company entered into a third
agreement to amend the Project Agreement of the
Cyberport Project with PCCW Limited and Cyber-Port
Limited. Pursuant to the third agreement, a maintenance
fund of HK$50,000,000 for the purpose of maintenance
and upgrading of the Cyberport Portion was received by
the Company (“Facilities Maintenance Fund”, “FMF").
Upon acquisition of the assets, the cost of the replaced
assets will be transferred from the FMF account to the
Capital Reserve account in accordance with the
Company's accounting policy.

During the year, building services and support facilities of
HK$9,633,700 (2015: HK$10,391,226) were acquired and
funded by the FMF. Accordingly, this amount has been
transferred from the FMF to Capital Reserve account.

21

22

BRREASES @

REBEARNR 2EHBR  EEENEEN
FEMAMEER  BEZFEEZKA
R EREEESHRPHNEG Yt AR
AiEEERPF o

BREEESHNFRLE T 6930448 T
(20154F : 9,790,279 7T ) BB E &5 5 H
AR ZERBEERBEREEESH
Br - WEF ABEAEERSF o

REEBES

M2006F9H5H » N2 A~ HKCAD &
BEERERARAEAAEMAR AR LER
BAERR BRI E = REFTEIS BT &1
& o RIBZE = RIERT k- AARER
—E50008 BT HIEES TR - AE
RELRBEEEBERD((REEEE
1) MREARBZEHERR  ARBE
BER  WREBRZEERANKBRIEEE
ESHABNRERPT

FAEE#HE9633700% T (20154 :
10,391,226/ 7 ) 2 T IR#G M &= 3R it -
WARBHEESIRHAFES - Bt -
BRFACBRIEHEESEREEEARR
wRP -

EREIBEEEERAT
2015/16 3R
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23 Deferred income

23 EFEW R

Notes to the Financial Statements Efi§ s R K&t

23 Deferred income (continued)

23 EIEUES ()

2016 2015
Government grants Sponsorship Government grants Sponsorship
B e & &8 BB E BB
Property, Property, Property, Property,
plant and plant and plant and plant and
equipment Others Sub-total  equipment equipment Others Sub-total  equipment
SET Hit gt SET] PEL: Hith Nt &L
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Cost A Cost B
At 1 April2015and R2015F4A1BR At 1 April 2014 R2014F4H1H 2,141 314 - 2141314 786,442 2927756
31 March 2016 20163 A31H - 882,000 882,000 - 882,000 Additions #m = 882,000 882,000 - 882,000
SeTmE e e et i?l‘ﬁiﬁ ”””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””” Write off of projects completed  FT&IEREH (2,141,314) - (2141,314)  (786,442) (2,927,756)
At 1 April 2015 m2015%4R1R - (230,279)  (230,279) - (230,279) At 31 March 2015 "2015%3A31H = 882,000 882,000 = 882,000
Credited to profit or loss FTABRR - (651,721)  (651,721) - (651,721) Accumulated amortisation ;;—m% _________________________________________________________________________________
At 31 March 2016 R2016%F3A31H - (882,000)  (882,000) - (882,000) At 1 April 2014 R2014F4H1H (2,081,754) - (2081,754)  (786,442) (2.868196)
Carrylngamount - ﬁEEfE __________________________________________________________________________________ Credited to profit or loss FTAER (59,560)  (230,279)  (289,839) = (289,839)
At 31 March 2016 E/Q\2016$3H31 E' _ _ _ _ _ W”iteOffOfprOjectscomplded E-#%‘J%ﬁiﬁﬁ 2,141,314 - 2,141,314 786,442 2,927,756
At3LMarch2015 ~  W2015%3A31A - (230279)  (230279) - (230279)
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2015 R2015F3A31H = 651,721 651,721 = 651,721
Note: Government grants are subject to terms and conditions specified MisE : BUSHiB& Lt 8 P isE Z 5k RARRIA
in the project agreements. Unused balances of government grants R o RETEISER RIRIAE AR B 18 - BUN B
are required to be repaid to the Government of the HKSAR upon SZRABRARERSFREBUT
completion of the projects and submission of the final accounts.
24 Share capital 24 B
2016 2015
No. of shares HK$  No. of shares
R EE BT RHEE
Ordinary shares, issued ERTRARZEER
and fully paid 2 2 2 2
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive LB BE AW R ZAE I
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled AR AR Z REAE L ERM D=
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All —EREE  RARBZFBREEMS -
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the B LR =R RS -
Company's residual assets.
13 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited BEBHBEEEEGRAAE 133
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25 Note to the statement of cash flows

from operations:

25 BRERBRME
\\\\\\ QEEBHELRSZHE

Reconciliation of loss for the year to net cash generated F N E

Notes to the Financial Statements Bt #3R Mz

Loss for the year FNEE
Adjustments for: PHEE -
Depreciation e

Realisation of deferred income and BEW = R BUSH 2 #35
government grants

Interest income from held-to-
maturity investments, net of
amortised premium

Interestincome from investments at RARBEFABRZKE

RAEZIHRKE
A B AR 35 4 B

(48,130,539)

117,713,101

(1,572,510)

(16,502,660)

(57,582,934)

148,376,683

(289,839)

(16,271,226)

fair value through profit or loss FEHA (8,603,452) (8,111,601)
Net realised/unrealised losses/ BRARBEFAEBRZRE
(gains) on investments at fair value B REHEES
through profit or loss (Wezs) 558 3,370,038 (2,108,451)
Interest income on bank deposits RITF ) BUA (1,142,171) (217.,217)
Provision for impairment of JE U BR SRR (B R ) F RE
receivables, net 10,685 120,452
Loss on disposals of property, plant ~ HE&EWHE - MERREZ
and equipment, net B85 5 161,442 77,441
Finance costs MBER 29,751 28,190
Loss/(gain) on exchange, net bE HEE (Mas ) F 88 3,623,602 (26,692)
Operating profit before working capital 3B & & B ERT 2 &%
changes i A 48,957,287 63,994,806
Increase in deferred rental receivables &3 fE U & 1 A0 (1,698,432) (274,098)
Decrease in inventories FERD 32,374 26,964
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other F& Uk B 2k K E 4th g Ug 308
receivables (&), R (7,141,957) 11,251,961
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due  FEU[R XM /B A RIFKIE
from fellow subsidiaries (38h0),/ m (68,038) 77,503
Decrease in trade and other payables  FE < BR 2 5 EL th & < BRI > (3,537,453) (26,348,686)
Increase in rental and other deposits & & E iz & 10 2,424,113 4,306,904
Net cash generated from operations — &&EEEAEL ZIRE/FH 38,967,894 53,035,354

134 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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26

27
(a)

(b)

26 ARFEEWHES

BETA R CSRE - RRATHRIE
TR SR T -

Future minimum rental receipts receivable

The future aggregate minimum rental receipts receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

In the first year F—F 149,213,048 189,210,053
Inthe second to fifth years inclusive ~ £ _ZFAF (BIEEREMRE) 138,538,987 142,159,031
After five years HFE - 1,053,334

287,752,035 332,422,418

ARBIZEERERBEZEERNF1
FEOFETZ(2015F : 1FE6F) °

Commitments 27 A

The Company's operating leases are for terms ranging
from1to 6 years (2015:1to 6 years).

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2016 not  (a) 20164 3 A 31 B 14 7K 1 B 7 | &= &
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

W2 ARNEREEWNT -

Contracted for EET4Y 44,089,527 9,133,938
Authorised but not contracted for ERERRTH - 1,341,708

44,089,527 10,475,646

At 31 March 2016, the total future minimum lease (b) HR2016F3F31H @ RBE I HHE 2 &
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are EHE  ARFKEHEENHEEAT
payable as follows:

EAERRRRIE
maintenance service fee payable RERKEHA

Information technology facilities

(note) (H¥&E)
In the first year FE—F 16,427,248 7,135,290
Inthe second to fifthyearsinclusive ~ F_ZFAF(BEEEMRF) 25,304,945 -
41,732,193 7,135,290

MiEE - BN EARHRRIERE ARG B R AR
EREBANZFRIERETHE -

Note: The commitment in respect of the information technology facilities
maintenance service fee payable is subject to certain adjustments
in accordance with the terms of the System Operation Contract.
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28 Related party transactions

The Company is wholly owned by the Government of the
HKSAR via Financial Secretary Incorporated. In
accordance with revised HKAS 24, Related party
disclosures, issued by HKICPA, government-related
entities and their subsidiaries, directly or indirectly
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by
the Government of HKSAR are defined as related parties
of the Company. On that basis, related parties include the
immediate holding company and its subsidiaries (other
than the Company), other government-related entities
and their subsidiaries, other entities and corporations in
which the Company is able to control or exercise
significant influence and key management personnel of
the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, approximately 3%
(2015: 3%) of the Company's revenue are rental income,
building management income and other facilities income
derived from the Government of HKSAR and other
government-related entities. All these services are
conducted in the normal course of business and in
accordance with the Company's pricing policy.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, for the purpose of
the related party transaction disclosures, emoluments of
the Directors of the Company is disclosed in note 7.

13 6 Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
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28 MBARS

AR R B B RBRFE BN EA]RIRA
BE2EHEE - RETESFMASRH
RIEFT BB SR ERISE 24 5% BF R 77 177 |
ZHE - NEESEEES - KEEK
XEBRRBFEATE ZBNERER
NEWB AT HRE/ARR
77 e NIt RER - BB BRERERA
AN EMB AR (RRAEERIN) - E R
FIHEACERLEMBAR - NAFEE
BKAIENEATE 2 HMERMEE
AEARRBIZEBRERAR ©

B E2016F3RA3BILFEERN KBEE
A ERBFMNEAMRFERERE 2 HS K
A MEE WA R B R WAL AR
RAEMA Z3% (20154 : 3%) - FTBE &
LRBIDELE R EFBREFIEARFZE
BERRETT °

BRAMBRRPEMEOBREIRZ R
REERON  (ERB T X 5 2 KB - NRF
EEZZHFMERME7PHE -
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